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Please Join Us For The
EMPLOYEE SERVICE RECOGNITION

CAKE & COFFEE RECEP:TION
Tuesday, May 25, 2021
At 7 :00 p.m. Prior to the Board Meeting
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VILLAGE BOARD MEETING
Tuesday, May 25, 2021 - 7:30 p.m.
This meeting will be held in person at the Village Hall Board Room,
447 N. Catherine Ave., La Grange Park, IL 60526
Public Comments may be submitted prior to and up until 5: 00 p.m. on the day of the meeting
via email: info@lagrangepark.org . Please put Public Comment in the subject line and reference
the meeting your comment is intended for. You may also submit your comments by calling
(708) 354-0225, Monday through Fridays, from 9:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.

AGENDA
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Call Meeting to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Employee Recognition Ceremony
Recognition of Retirements Fire Division Chief Rick Ronovsky and
Firefighter Lee Kudia
6. Recognition of Melanie Dawe, La Grange Park Sustainability
Commission Green Spotlight Household Award Recipient
7. Public Participation (Agenda Related Items Only)
8. Consent Agenda (Roll Call Vote)
No discussion. Trustees wishing to discuss any of the items below MUST request that the item be
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to motion to approve.

A. Approval of Minutes
i.
Village Board Meeting - April 27, 2021
ii.
Village Board Executive Session - April 2 7, 2021
iii.
Village Board Work Session Meeting - May 11, 2021

B. Action - Motion to Authorize the President and Chairperson of the Finance
Committee to Sign the Register for Bills, and Authorize the Treasurer and
Village Clerk to Sign Checks in Payment of Operating Bills and Salaries as
Itemized in the Check Registers
C. Action - Motion to Authorize the Village Treasurer and Village Clerk to Sign

Checks in the Payment of Payroll and Other Bills that Become Due Between
this Date and the Next Village Board Meeting with Subsequent Approval of

447 N. Catherine Avenue, La Grange Park, Illinois 60526-2099
708/354-0225 * Fax 708/354-0241 * www.lagrangepark.org

VILLAGE BOARD MEETI NG
May 25, 2021 - 7:30 p.m.

AGENDA ( continued - Page 2)

the Payroll Register and Voucher Register by the Board of Trustees at its
Next Meeting

9. Village Manager's Report
10. Administration Committee
A. Monthly Report
11. Building & Zoning Committee
A. Monthly Report
B. Discussion & Action - Special Use Permit Request For 23 E. 31 st Street Motion: To Approve An Ordinance Granting A Special Use Permit For
Outdoor Dining For 23 E. 31 st Street - BevMasters, LLC (Case #21-0003)

12. Engineering & Ca pital Projects Committee
A. Monthly Report
13. Public Safety Committee
A. Monthly Report - Police Department
B. Monthly Report - Fire Department

14. Public Works Committee
A. Monthly Report
B. Discussion & Action - 2021 Sewer Repair Program - Additional Expense
Authorization - Motion: To Approve The Final Payment To Suburban
General In The Amount Of $109,670.10 For The 2021 Sewer Repair
Program
C. Discussion & Action - 2020/21 Salt Purchase Contract - Revise Open
Purchase Order - Motion: To Approve A Revision To The "Not To Exceed
Amount" For The Existing Open Purchase Order With Cargill Incorporated
Salt Division, From $33,000.00 To $38,000.00

15. Finance Committee
A. Monthly Report

447 N. Catherine Avenue, La Grange Park, Illinois 60526-2099
708/354-0225 * Fax 708/354-0241 * www.lagrangepark.org
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AGENDA (continued - Page 3)

16. Other Reports
A. Village Clerk
B. Village Treasurer
C. Commercial Revitalization Committee
1. Monthly Report
2. Discussion & Action - 2021 Pilot Banner Program - Motion:
Approve The 2021 Pilot Banner Program

To

D. Village Engineer
E. Village Attorney
F. Committee and Collectors Report
Action (Roll Call Vote) - Motion: To Approve Committee and Collectors
Report as Presented

17. Village President
A. Proclamation - Celebrating the 100th Anniversary of Pillars Community
Health
B. Proclamation - National EMS Week, May 16 - 22, 2021
C. Proclamation - National Public Works Week, May 16 - 22, 2021
18. Public Participation {Non-Agenda Related Items Only)
19. New Business
20. Executive Session
21. Adjourn
Items of Interest:
Village Board Work Session, June 8, 2021
Village Board Meeting, June 22, 2021

The Village of La Grange Park is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.
Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in
order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the
accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact Maggie Jarr, Assistant Village Manager,
at 708-354-0225 x108 or mjarr@lagrangepark.org promptly to allow the Village of La Grange Park to make
reasonable accommodations for those persons.

447 N. Catherine Avenue, La Grange Park, Illinois 60526-2099
708/354-0225 * Fax 708/354-0241 * www.la ran e ark.or
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Rules for Public Comment
Village Board Meetings

1. Please step up .to the microphone before speaking, and announce your name
before beginning your comments.
2. After announcing your name for the record, you will be allowed to speak for
three (3) minutes.
3. You may not use profane or obscene language and you may not threaten any
person with bodily harm, or engage in conduct which amounts to a threat of
physical harm.
4. Agenda-related comments: The Village President reserves the right to
disallow comments that are repetitive of comments previously made during
the meeting, or comments that do not relate to agenda items.
5. The Village of La Grange Park complies with the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990. If you require accommodations in order to observe
or participate in the meeting, please contact Assistant Village Manager
Maggie Jarr (708) 354-0225 between 9:00 and 4:30 p.m. before the meeting
so that the Village can make reasonable accommodations for you.

www.lagrangepark.org

Village Board Agenda M emo

Date:

May 25, 2021

To:

Village President and Board of Trustees

From:

Julia A. Cedillo, Village Manage~
Richard N. Radde, Director of Public Works

Re:

e

Recognition of Melanie Dawe, La Grange Park Sustainability
Commission Green Spotlight Household Award Recipient

In previous years, the Village of La Grange Park's Sustainability Commission
recognizes a village resident who utilizes native landscape, gardens, or other
means of sustainable actions with an award noting their commitment to long
term sustainability. The Green Spotlight award was postponed in 2020 due to the
pandemic. The Commissioners are enthusiastic to reinstate the award
presentation this year.
Sustainability Commissioners have accepted nominations for this honor and chose
Melanie Dawe, a resident of 22 years as recipient of the Green Spotlight Award.
At the meeting, Dave Mrazek of the Sustainability Commission will present Ms.
Dawe with a certificate of award. Additionally, a yard sign is given which can be
displayed in her yard for the next few months in appreciation of environmental
sustainability.

The Green Spotlight Award, created by the La Grange Park Sustainability Commission, is given
to a village resident who has embraced a more sustainable lifestyle. This spring we are
recognizing Melanie Dawe, who has lived in La Grange Park for 22 years.
Melanie shows her commitment to sustainable living in a variety of ways; she reduces her
waste intake, reuses what she has, and like many La Grange Park residents, she recycles.
Melanie's family goes to nearby farmer's markets as much as they can. For the last two years
Melanie has subscribed to The Conservation Foundation's Green Earth Harvest in Naperville, a
non-profit that sustainably farms organic vegetables. Members own "shares" which entitle
them to an allotment of vegetables throughout the harvest season. (Sorry, this year's harvest is
sold out). The organization does many things, such as hosting an annual native plant sale, of
which Melanie has taken advantage. She also checks out native plant sales at our local forest
preserve districts.
Speaking of native plants, Melanie has been cultivating them for at least ten years and expands
the growing space in her yard each year. Coneflowers, Goldenrod, Milkweed, and other
varieties of native flowers attract Monarch butterflies and other pollinators.
Melanie recently built a larger garage further back from her house. More concrete would be
needed for the extended driveway, decreasing the absorption of rainwater in the backyard,
which would necessitate the installation of a dry well to collect the water runoff. Melanie
realized that installing permeable pavers, instead of concrete, made more sense. Excess
rainwater would easily make its way into the ground via the pavers; it was a more natural
solution. "You have to put the whole picture together," Melanie recently recounted.
Melanie is admirably doing her part to live with a lighter carbon footprint in our village. She is
an inspiration to the community and we appreciate it. It's my pleasure to give Melanie Dawe
our Green Spotlight Award for this spring, a season of rebirth that is even more meaningful as
we emerge from this challenging pandemic.

Building & Zoning Committee Divider

Village Board Agenda Memo
Date:

May25,2021

To:

Village President and Board of Trustees

From:

Maggie Jarr, Assistant Village Manager

&/

Julia Cedillo, Village Manag~
RE:

Special Use Permit Request for 23 E. 31st Street

GENERAL BACKGROUND
The Subject Property is located at 23 E. 31st Street The Applicant, BevMasters LLC, is requesting
approval of a Special Use Permit for Outdoor Dining in accordance with Section 153.131(Table 8-1)
and Section 153.177(P) of the Zoning Code. The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public
hearing regarding the application on April 20, 2021. The Applicant, along with members of the public,
attended the hearing and provided testimony. The minutes from the meeting, court reporter
transcript, and approved Findings of Fact are attached to this memorandum. Upon conclusion on the
public hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the Special Use
Permit for Outdoor Dining by a vote of six (6) to zero (0).

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff concurs with the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission.

MOTION/ACTION REQUESTED
This item is for discussion and action.
Motion to approve an Ordinance Granting a Spedal Use Permitfor Outdoor Diningfor 23 E. 31 st
Street- BevMasters, LLC (Case #21-0003)

DOCUMENTATION
•
•
•
•

Ordinance Granting a Special Use Permit for Outdoor Dining for 23 E. 31st Street BevMasters LLC (Case #21-0003)
Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda Memo -April 20, 2021
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes-April 20, 2021
Public Hearing Transcript (Case #21-0003)

ORDINANCE NO. 1147
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR OUTDOOR DINING FOR
23 E. 31ST STREET-BEVMASTERS, LLC
CASE #21-0003
WHEREAS, BevMasters LLC (Applicant) on or about March 16, 2021, filed an
application for a Special Use Permit for outdoor dining for the property located at 23 East
31 st Street, referred to as "Subject Property" legally described and attached hereto as Exhibit
A;and
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Planning and Zoning Commission of
the Village of La Grange Park, Illinois, on April 20, 2021, pursuant to notice and publication
as required by law; and
WHEREAS, the public hearing was opened at approximately 7:00 p.m. on April 20,
2021, and pursuant to a unanimous vote of the members of the Planning and Zoning
Commission; on April 20, 2021 the public hearing was concluded; and
WHEREAS, with respect to the Application for Special Use Permit for Outdoor Dining,
based upon documentary evidence and testimony presented by the Applicant and members
of the public, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended the Village Board of
Trustees grant approval of the Special Use Permit based upon certain Findings of Fact,
adopted by the Planning and Zoning Commission on May 18, 2021 (true and correct copies
of which Findings of Fact are attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit Band incorporated herein
by reference as if fully set forth herein); and
WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of La Grange Park have
reviewed the Application, hearing transcript, and Findings of Fact, and have publicly
discussed this issue at a regularly scheduled meeting on May 25, 2021.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the
Village of La Grange Park, Cook County, Illinois as follows:
SECTION 1:

That a Special Use Permit for Outdoor Dining is hereby granted to in accordance
with Section 153.131(Table 8-1) and Section 153.177(P) of the Zoning Code.

SECTION 2:

That all necessary permits may be issued by the Village of La Grange Park,
subject to further compliance with this Ordinance and all other applicable
Village Ordinances and Codes.

SECTION 3:

That this Ordinance shall become effective and shall be in full force and effect
from and after its passage in the manner provided by law.

ADOPTED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Village of La Grange Park,
Cook County, Illinois, this 25 th day of May 2021.

James L. Discipio, Village President
Village of La Grange Park
ATTEST: _ _ _ _ _ _ __
Meghan Kooi, Village Clerk

Vote taken by the Board of Trustees on passage of the above ordinance:
AYES:

NOS:

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT:

Meghan Kooi
Village Clerk
Approved as to form by Village Attorney:

EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION
LOTS 10 AND 11, (EXCEPT THE WEST 10 FEET) ALSO (EXCEPT THAT PORTION AS
CONDEMNED FOR HIGHWAY IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS CASE
NO. 76L5694) AND (EXCEPT THAT PART DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 10; THENCE WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINES OF SAID
LOTS 10 AND 11 A DISTANCE OF 40 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT BEING 15 FEET WEST
OF THE SOUTHWEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 11; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE LYING
AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE LAST DESCRIBED LINE A DISTANCE OF 3.37 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE A DISTANCE OF 40.04 FEET TO A
POINT, SAID POINT BEING 1.5 FEET NORTH OF THE POINT OF BEGINNING, AS MEASURED
ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 10; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID
LOT 10 A DISTANCE OF 1.5 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING) ALL IN BLOCK 5 IN
MARES' & WHITES' SECOND ADDITION TO LA GRANGE PARK, A SUBDIVISION OF THE
SOUTH HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (LYING EASTERLY OF FIFTH AVENUE) OF
SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

EXHIBIT B
FINDINGS OF FACT

FINDINGS OF FACT
VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE PARK PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
CASE - #21-0003
23 E. 31ST STREET
WHEREAS, BevMasters LLC (Applicant) on or about March 16, 2021, filed an application for a
Special Use Permit for outdoor dining for the property located at 23 East 31 st Street, referred to as
"Subject Property"; and
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Village
of La Grange Park, Illinois, on April 20, 2021, pursuant to notice and publication as required by law; and
WHEREAS, the public hearing was opened at approximately 7:00 p.m. on April 20, 2021, and
pursuant to a unanimous vote of the members of the Planning and Zoning Commission; on April 20, 2021
the public hearing was concluded; and
WHEREAS, with respect to the Application for Special Use Permit, based upon documentary
evidence and testimony presented by the Applicant and members of the public, the Planning and Zoning
Commission makes the following Summary of Facts, and pursuant to §153.0SB(E) of the La Grange Park
Zoning Code, makes the following Findings of Fact:

The Subject Property is located at 23 E. 31st Street, on the northwest corner of 31st Street and
Meadowcrest Road. The primary entrance is located on 31st Street and a public alley is located
at the rear of the property. The property is zoned in the C-1 Commercial District and is improved
with a single-story brick structure. The Applicant intends to operate a micro-brewery on the
property, which is permitted under the zoning code. Adjacent to the brewery is a commercial
building occupied by Crown Trophy, as well as single-family residential to the north, multi-family
residential to the east, and commercial development to the south.
The brewery is 2,658 square feet and will include a beer brewing area, walk-in cooler, office,
storage, bar and sitting area, lounge, and restrooms. A dumpster enclosure and two parking stalls
will be located at the rear of the property, along with an enclosed outdoor dining area, if the
requested Special Use Permit is granted. Initial plans indicate that the brewery will seat up to 57
people inside and SO people outside. Before the number of occupants and the layout of tables
and chairs are finalized, the Village will evaluate all plans for compliance with the applicable
building and fire codes.
The Applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for outdoor dining. If granted, the Applicant
would provide an outdoor dining area, also referred to as a beer garden or patio, on the north
side of the building. The proposed patio is 984 square feet and features wall mounted lighting
and cafe lights, an outdoor speaker system, and colorful umbrellas, wall art, and other decor. The
subject area, which was previously used as an outdoor recreation area in conjunction with a
doggy day-care business, is already paved and enclosed by a six-foot privacy fence on the north
and east sides.

1

3. The special use in the specific location proposed is consistent with the spirit and intent of this
Code and the Comprehensive Plan.
The brewery is a permitted use within the C-1 Commercial District and the request for outdoor
dining is an extension of this use. The Applicant will comply with all requirements for outdoor
dining areas as outlined in §153.177(P) of the zoning code. Granting of the Special Use Permit
would allow the Applicant to provide an amenity that is currently limited within the Village.
The Village's 2006 Comprehensive Plan identifies "Attractive and viable commercial areas and
land uses" as a primary goal and further identifies as an objective to "Encourage and attract retail
businesses that will enhance the Village's tax base." The proposed special use is consistent with
the 2006 Comprehensive Plan.
Regarding the request for a Special Use Permit outlined above, the Planning and Zoning Commission
voted as follows:
AYES:

Boyd, Bartholomai, Domagalski, Lampert, Lee, Studwell

NAYS:

None

ABSENT:

None

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 18th day of May, 2021.

VILLAGE OF LAGRANGE PARK
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

By[-~c-w
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Documentation:
PZC Age nd a Memo dated April 20, 2021

Planning & Zoning Commission Agenda M emo
Date:

April 20, 2021

To:

Eric Boyd, Planning & Zoning Commission Chair
Members of the Planning & Zoning Commission

From: Maggie Jarr, Assistant Village Manager
RE:

23 E. 31st Street-SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST [#21-0003]

GENERAL BACKGROUND
The subject property is located at 23 E. 31st Street, on the northwest comer of 31st Street and
Meadowcrest Road. The primary entrance is located on 31st Street and a public alley is located at the rear
of the property. The property is zoned in the C-1 Commercial District and is improved with a single-story
brick structure. The applicant, BevMasters LLC, recently completed work on the interior demolition, and is
currently working with an architect to finalize renovation plans for the interior of the structure. The
applicant intends to operate a micro-brewery on the property, which is permitted under the zoning code.
Adjacent to the brewery is a commercial building occupied by Crown Trophy, as well as single-family
residential to the north, multi-family residential to the east, and commercial development to the south.
The applicant has submitted an application and is qualified for a Class B license, which authorizes the sale
of beer and wine either in the original package or for consumption on the premises. The brewery is 2,658
square feet and will include a beer brewing area, walk-in cooler, office, storage, bar and sitting area,
lounge, and restrooms. A dumpster enclosure and two parking stalls will be located at the rear of the
property, along with an enclosed outdoor dining area, if the requested special use permit is granted. While
the Village does not regulate hours of operation (only the hours during which alcohol is sold), the
anticipated hours of operation for the business will be:
Monday-Thursday
4:00-9:00 p.m.
Friday
3:00-10:00 p.m.
Saturday
12:00-10:00 p.m.
Sunday
12:00-8:00 p.m.
Initial plans indicate that the brewery will seat up to 61 people inside and 62 people outside. Before the
number of occupants and the layout of tables and chairs are finalized, the Village will evaluate all plans for
compliance with the applicable building and fire codes. Parking is available on site and in the public rightof-way along the west side of Meadowcrest Road, adjacent to the brewery. The applicant has also secured
additional private, off-site parking spaces through an agreement with a neighboring business owner.

ZONING REQUEST
The applicant is requesting a special use permit for outdoor dining. Per §153.131(Table 8-1), outdoor
dining is a special use in the C-1 Commercial District. Per §153.177(P), the following regulations apply to
outdoor dining areas:
"Outdoor dining is considered a separate use, rather than accessory to the principal use, and shall be
subject to the following standards:

1. Outdoor dining shall not interfere with the pedestrian access or parking spaces and aisles. Unless
otherwise permitted by the Village, outdoor dining areas shall be located only on private property.
2. Outdoor dining shall not be located in any required yard that abuts a residential use or district,
unless an alley is located between the use and a residential use or district."
If granted, the special use permit would allow the applicant to provide an outdoor dining area, also
referred to as a beer garden or patio, on the north side of the building. The proposed patio is 984 square
feet and features wall mounted lighting and cafe lights, an outdoor speaker system, and colorful
umbrellas, wall art, and other decor. The subject area, which was previously used as an outdoor recreation
area in conjunction with a doggy day-care business, is already paved and enclosed by a six-foot privacy
fence on the north and east sides. The patio is also bordered by the existing building to the south and
neighboring commercial building to the west.
The applicant is familiar with the Village's nuisance regulations and does not anticipate any adverse
impacts to nearby residential properties due to noise, as the patio will only be accessible from the interior
of the brewery and outdoor sound will be buffered by the screening, parking area, and alley. Freestanding
planters are proposed to be located on the patio for additional sound mitigation and aesthetic
enhancement. One egress exit will be provided from the patio to the parking lot for emergency access.
Due in part to the parking exemption granted to businesses in this zoning district, the applicant is only
required to provide one parking space. Their proposal to provide a total of twelve spaces, including one
accessible space, exceeds the requirement. Two spaces, including one accessible space, will be located on
the property and 10 spaces will be located along Meadowcrest Road.
ANALYSIS: SPECAL USE PERMIT FOR OUTDOOR DINING
According to the zoning code, a special use must meet the following criteria in order for the special use
permit to be granted.

a. The establishment, maintenance, and operation of the special use in the specific location
proposed will not endanger the public health, safety, or general welfare of any portion of the
community.
The brewery, which is considered a tavern/bar, is a permitted use within the C-1 Commercial
District and the request for outdoor dining is an extension of this use. The operation of the
brewery, including the outdoor dining area, will comply with all Village, County, and State
regulations. The property is currently served by adequate water and sewer infrastructure and is
accessible to the north, east, and south via public right-of-way. The proposed special use is
consistent with the zoning code and presents no danger to public health, safety, or general
welfare.

b. The proposed spedal use is compatible with adjacent properties and/or other properties within
the immediate vicinity of the special use.
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The brewery is a permitted use within the C-1 Commercial District and is located along a corridor
with other commercial buildings along the north and south sides of 31st Street. The majority of
commercial properties fronting 31st Street in La Grange Park have a public alley located behind the
buildings, with single-family homes located adjacent to (on the other side of) the alley. The
configuration of the applicant's property and its relation to the adjacent residences are not unique
circumstances within the Village or within neighboring communities.
The proposed outdoor dining area is consistent with the existing brewery use and will not be
visible from the residential areas to the north or east. The outdoor dining area will be fully
enclosed and accessible only from the interior of the restaurant (except in the case of an
emergency). No patrons will enter or exit the outdoor dining area from the parking lot. The
proposed speaker system will not impact the nearby residences, as the sound will be buffered by
the screening, parking area, and alley. The applicant has committed to abiding by all Village
nuisance regulations. The proposed lighting will be turned off when the brewery closes.

c.

The special use in the specific location proposed is consistent with the spirit and intent of the
Zoning Code and Comprehensive Plan.
The brewery is a permitted use within the C-1 Commercial District and the request for outdoor
dining is an extension of this use. The applicant will comply with all requirements for outdoor
dining areas as outlined in §153.177(P) of the zoning code. Granting of the special use permit
would allow the applicant to provide an amenity that is currently limited within the Village.
The Village's 2006 Comprehensive Plan identifies "Attractive and viable commercial areas and
land uses" as a primary goal and further identifies as an objective to "Encourage and attract retail
businesses that will enhance the Village's tax base." The proposed special use is consistent with
the 2006 Comprehensive Plan.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
After a thorough analysis and review, staff believes the standards have been met with regard to
the request for a special use permit for outdoor dining and recommends that the Planning &
Zoning Commission recommend to the Village Board of Trustees granting of the special use
permit.

DOCUMENTATION
•
•
•
•
•

Application for a Special Use Permit for Outdoor Dining
Parking Calculation Worksheet
Meadowcrest Road and Woodside Avenue Proposed Parking Plan
Review Letter from Hancock Engineering
Letter to Adjacent Property Owners/Public Hearing Notice
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Approved 5118121
Village ofLa Grange Park
Planning & Zoning Commission - Minutes
April 20, 2021
7:00 p.m.
A meeting of the La Grange Park Planning & Zoning Commission was scheduled to be held at 7 :00 p.m. on
Tuesday, April 20, 2021 via Teleconference due to COVID-19.

1. Convene Meeting
The meeting of the La Grange Park Planning & Zoning Commission was called to order at 7:03 p.m. on Tuesday,
April 20, 2021. Chairman Eric Boyd stated for the record that the meeting was being held remotely due to COVID19 and confirmed that all participants could hear.
Members in attendance were:
Committee Members:

Eric Boyd, Chairman
William Lampert
Christopher Studwell
Caroline Domagalski
Jim Lee
Robert Bartholomai

Others in Attendance:

Julia Cedillo, Village Manager
Maggie Jarr, Assistant Village Manager
Cathleen Keating, Village Attorney
Meghan Kooi, Village Clerk
Dean Maggos, Director of Building and Fire
Patrick Boyle, Building Official

2. Public Comment
There was no public comment.
3. Approval of the Minutes - January 19, 2021
Commissioner Domagalski moved to approve the minutes of the January 19, 2021 Planning & Zoning
Commission. Commissioner Lampert seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously by roll call vote.
4. Public Hearing #21-003 to Consider an Application for a Special Use Permit for the Property Located
at 23 E. 3pt Street, La Grange Park, Illinois- BeyMasters, LLC
Chairman Boyd convened the public hearing at 7:08 p.m. and introduced the matter. He read the legal notice into
the record of the hearing, summarized the request, and asked that all those in attendance wishing to testify rise
and be sworn in. The court reporter administered the oath to those wishing to testify and transcribed the public
hearing proceedings verbatim.
When there were no further questions or testimony to be presented, Commissioner Domagalski moved to close
the public hearing. Commissioner Studwell seconded the motion. The motion carried by roll call vote and the
hearing was closed at 8:35 p.m.
The PZC discussed the criteria that was met in order to consider the Special Use Permit for the property located
at 23 E. 31 st Street. The PZC thanked the applicant for a thorough presentation and for addressing the questions
from the community and the PZC.
At the end of the discussion, Commissioner Lee made a motion to recommend approval to the Village Board of
granting a Special Use Permit for the Property Located at 23 E. 3JS' Street, La Grange Park, lllinois-BevMasters,
LLC. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Domagalski and passed unanimously by roll call vote.

5. Adiournment

With no further business to come before the PZC, Chairman Boyd called for a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Commissioner Studwell made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Domagalski seconded the motion.
The motion passed unanimously by roll call vote and the meeting was adjourned at 8:40 p.m.
Respectfully Submitted,
,l1"~•. F\.
.t,,.,. ·w4-_
V
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Q

Me.· nM.Kooi
Vil age Clerk
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BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE PARK
PLANNING

&

ZONING COMMISSION

In Re the Matter of:
No. 21-003
Application for a Special Use
Permit for the Property Located at
23 E. 31st Street, La Grange Park,
Illinois - BevMasters, LLC

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS
April 20, 2021
7:00 p.m.

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony taken
via videoconference, at the public hearing of the
above-entitled cause, before the VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
PARK PLANNING

&

ZONING COMMISSION, held at the

LaGrange Park Village Hall, 447 North Catherine,
LaGrange Park, Illinois.

Reported by:

Pamela L. Cosentino, CSR

License No.:

084-003601

23 E. 31st Street, LaGrange Park
April 20, 2021
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1

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Let's move to our public hearing.

2

Let me explain again quickly some of the procedures for

3

today.

4

be on; is that correct.

We have a court reporter, I believe, who will

5

MS. JARR:

That's correct.

6

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

We're going to begin by me

7

convening the public hearing process.

Then I'll read

8

the legal notice into the record, and I'll explain the

9

proceeding a little bit, talk a little bit more about

10

what's the next step.

11

information done, we'll close the public hearing, and

12

the court reporter will go away, and the board

13

commissioners will discuss the matter and deliberate,

14

and we'll, at the very end, request a motion from the

15

board for vote on the matter.

16

And before we get all the

So with that, I'm going to convene the public

17

hearing.

Do we have our -- I can't tell whether the

18

court reporter is here and writing.

19

MS. JARR:

Yes, she is.

20

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

"The notice is hereby given that on

21

April 20, 2021, a public hearing will be held before

22

the Planning

&

Zoning Commission of LaGrange Park,
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1

Illinois, in the Village Hall at 447 North Catherine

2

Avenue, at 7:00 p.m. or soon thereafter, for the

3

purpose of considering an application for a Special Use

4

permit to allow outdoor dining on the property zoned as

5

C-1 commercial district, located at 23 East 31st

6

Street, LaGrange Park, Illinois, and legally described

7

as" -- and we can give the court reporter the legal

8

description.

9

I won't read it now.

"The Petitioner, BevMasters, LLC, is

10

requesting a Special Use permit to allow outdoor dining

11

in conjunction with a permitted tavern/bar use.

12

application is available for examination during regular

13

office hours at LaGrange Park Village Hall, 447 North

14

Catherine Avenue, LaGrange Park, Illinois.

15

The

"All interested persons are invited and

16

welcome to attend the hearing.

All persons interested

17

in providing testimony at the hearing are welcome to do

18

so.

19

"Eric Boyd, Chairman."

20

So with that, we're going to go into the

21

actual public hearing.

22

from the petitioner.

As I said, first we'll hear
We will then ask the audience if
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1

any members of the audience have any questions or want

2

to give testimony.

3

petitioner as well as the staff.

4

we'll ask the Planning

5

questions of either the applicant or the staff.

6

once we have completed the hearing, after all the

7

evidence and information is presented, I'll ask for the

8

public hearing to be closed and we will deliberate.

9

They can ask questions of both the

&

And following that,

Zoning Commission if they have
And

So given all that, I'm not sure quite how you

10

all want to do the swearing in.

11

testimony during the public hearing can now be sworn in

12

by the court reporter.

13

MS. JARR:

14

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

15

Sure.

Anybody wants to give

Yes.
Okay.

Why don't we do that.

Madam Court Reporter, and anybody who wants

16

to give testimony today in this matter, please raise

17

your hand and the court reporter will now swear you in.

18
19

(Witnesses duly sworn.)
MS. JARR:

We are going to ask anybody who is going

20

to be giving public comment to state their name and

21

address for the record now.

22

here, at Village Hall, and then we will look to the

We will go around the room

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630.653.1622

23 E. 31st Street, LaGrange Park
April 20, 2021

6

1

GoToMeeting for any additional participants from the

2

public.

3

4

So we'll start here.

MS. COLLINS:

My name is Laura Collins.

And the

business address is 19 East 31st Street.

5

MS. JARR:

We'll continue.

6

MR. GASKELL:

My name is Drew Gaskell, and I live

7

in the 300 block of Castle Circle in the Robinhood

8

Estates subdivision.

9

10

MR. LOWERY:

My name is Michael Lowery.

I am at

1238 Community Drive.

11

MR. BONJEAN:

12

MR. O'MALLEY:

13

1139 Meadowcrest.

Adam Bonjean, 1030 Meadowcrest.
Mike O'Malley,

14

MS. D'AMICO:

Anna D'Amico, 1137 Meadowcrest.

15

MR. MEDRANO:

David Medrano, 1131 Meadowcrest.

16

MS. JARR:

17

MS. CAMREN:

18
19

Is there anyone else here?
Heather Camren, and that's

223 East 31st Street.
MR. KOBLISH:

James Keblish.

20

320 Castle Circle.

21

MS. HANSEN:

22

MS. JARR:

That's

Laura Hansen, 320 Castle Circle.
I'll ask now, is there anyone joining us
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1

remotely through GoToMeeting from the general public

2

who plans to ask a question or provide public comment

3

during the public hearing?

4

5
6

7
8

9

Okay.

Sounds like none.

So I believe we can

proceed.
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Thank you.

Let's ask the

petitioner to present their case to the board.
MR. KOBLISH:

Okay.

Hi, everyone, everyone that

came out tonight, and everyone who is tuning in.

10

name is Jim Koblish.

11

and we are the owners of Pop District Community

12

Brewers.

13

LaGrange Park area, for the LGP.

14

My

This is my fiancee, Shane Hansen,

We are a family-owned and run brewery for the

So just to start off with, I have some notes

15

here.

16

Estates for over five years, and we're actually

17

following my grandfather living in LaGrange Park where

18

he was there for about 25 years.

19

here.

20

community as much as possible.

21

love the area.

22

We've been living in the area in Robinhood

Our kids go to school

We've enjoyed and try to participate in the
Just in general, we

I'm going to actually do a little bit more of
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1

the speaking tonight.

2

little bit of a sore throat, just to let you know.

3

She's not feeling that well.

A

I hope everyone can hear me okay with the

4

mask.

5

background.

6

over 20 years of restaurant experience and management.

7

And me personally, I've been brewing and also

8

distilling since 2009.

9

on a home brew level and also on a professional level

10

Just to start off with, a little bit of our own
Personally together, the two of us have

We have multiple awards locally

in the State of Illinois.

11

I hold multiple safety certifications with

12

the Brewers Association and we both are also facet

13

certified.

14

certification, it is how to safely serve alcohol in a

15

professional commercial environment.

16

If you are unfamiliar with the

And everyone that will be working in our

17

establishment will also have and hold the same

18

certification, and it does need to get renewed every

19

couple of years.

20

When this building went up for sale, we saw

21

it as a really exciting opportunity to bring something

22

to the community that we always would like to see in a
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1

small tight-knit family community, and that's a place

2

to meet up with friends, kick back and relax.

3

LaGrange Park, we have almost the same number of

4

residents as LaGrange, but they have a very large

5

hustle-bustle downtown, so I thought, well, maybe it's

6

our turn to have a little bit of something that could

7

be just for us.

And

8

And to go on about Pop District, it's kind of

9

funny the way we came up the name is, the original name

10

was actually LGP Brewing Company, but we thought

11

eventually if we grew, the surrounding towns may not

12

understand what that was because it's kind of a local

13

thing, or also I have been told "The 2-6" is another

14

thing that people know us by.

15

The second name we came up with was

16

31st Street Brewery, but that was unfortunately taken.

17

So we started to think about what other ways

18

can we emphasize that we are here for our community.

19

We want to support and give back to the community and

20

be a part of the community and see our family and

21

friends and neighbors there, and I was thinking our

22

kids are in District 102.

Well, we love our area.

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630.653.1622

Our

23 E. 31st Street, LaGrange Park
April 20, 2021

10

1

friends in the area love beer.

2

District 102 Brewing Company, what about Pop District?

3

So it just sort of fit and stuck from there.

4

What about instead of

So moving on to just the actual place itself,

5

I'm going to try to pull up the application for those

6

who did not get a chance to look through it.

7

let's see.

8

This is to give everyone kind of a sneak peek.

9
10

And,

I hope everyone can see this all right.

Here we go.
So this is to kind of give everyone just a

11

sneak peek at the

12

Now, this is -- I'm going to zoom out a little bit so

13

people can see more of what we have going on here

14

because I want people to get a feel for what we have

15

going on here.

16

but comfortable place for friends to meet.

17

kind of the concept of the place.

This is going to be an upscale, nice,

In this area here, this will be the main

18

entrance vestibule.

19

immediately see the equipment.

20

You'll come in and you'll

My viewpoint on brewing was never even the

21

fact that it was alcohol or anything like that.

22

always approached it almost like a chef, where it's one
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1

of the few things in my mind where you can meld both

2

science and art.

3

got to figure out the correct way to get there.

4

wanted people to be able to see every aspect of what's

5

going on.

6

tables or stools, they'll be actually able to look in

7

and see the equipment, and it is going to be very shiny

8

and, you know, the different tools that we use every

9

day.

You're creating something, but you
So I

So when the people are sitting at these

It's going to be really exciting.

10

Now, in this front area right about here,

11

you'll notice that it's labeled "Lounge," because we

12

wanted a place that would not just be tables and

13

chairs, but be comfortable.

14

back and relax and talk, spend time with your

15

neighbors.

16

much distance between friends and neighbors, I think

17

that we can all relate to that.

18

place where people could meet up and just, you know,

19

get to know each other again.

20

be a nice addition.

21
22

Actually be able to kick

You know, this past year has created so

But this would give a

So I thought that would

We plan on having bike racks in the front of
the building here because I know there's a couple local
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1

bicycle groups.

2

which is what we're here to talk about today, we wanted

3

to offer some outdoor seating because we all know that

4

Chicago in the summertime is one of the best places

5

there is to be.

6

here.

7

We're going to have colorful umbrellas.

8

into some more of that.

9

everyone examples of.

10

And then back to the outside area,

So we're going to have some tables out

We're also going to be some plants and flowers.
But we can get

I have some pictures to give

Now, this right here, if everyone is able to

11

follow along with the floor plan, is actually a

12

six-foot privacy fence.

13

our advantage because it is going to keep people in,

14

obviously, but it will also do a great deal to keep

15

noise down.

16

tendency where it could produce noise, but we're taking

17

measures to try to mitigate that.

18

fence will definitely help.

19

fronds, stuff like that, will actually help to break

20

down noise.

21

music.

22

sound at all times.

So that is going to work to

Anybody that congregates, there is a

So the high privacy

The plants, high palm

We plan on having cafe lights and low

We plan on following all village ordinances for
We don't anticipate this or even
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1

want this to be a late night establishment by any

2

means.

3

probably often close before the interior will just

4

because we live in the area, we understand the area.

5

We are two streets over.

6

with our actual neighbors.

There will be times where the beer garden will

7

We want to be good neighbors

So let me go ahead and see if I can find some

8

of the things here, just I wanted to show you.

9

the more technical drawing if anybody was interested.

10

Here's

It's available to the public.

11

And scrolling down here just to give you a

12

couple of ideas of the hours.

13

through this point by point.

14

week.

15

those who like to get off of work and enjoy the

16

weekend.

17

that we're open during the day, just to enjoy a little

18

bit of sunshine.

19

be the latest hour that we will be open for our hours.

20
21
22

First off we can just go
4:00 to 9:00 during the

Friday we will open a little bit earlier for

Saturday and Sunday will be the only days

And 10:00 is what we plan on having

We like these cafe-style string lights; it
will keep the lighting dim but also just comfortable.
For emergencies we'll have spotlights and
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1
2

also for cleaning if need be at the end of the night.
We are big fans of doing stuff the right way

3

and that includes safety.

4

on the inside in case of emergency, emergency exit.

5

are installing a sprinkler system and also spotlights

6

outside like I mentioned.

7

So we'll have bright lights

We have these Sonos brand, which are WiFi

8

speakers for the outside.

9

them but keeping them at low volumes.

We plan on having two of
They are

10

controlled remotely only by management, which will be

11

on premises at all times.

12

We

Seating, we plan on using wood-look,

13

UV-protected tables.

14

they're comfortable, and we think that they will create

15

a nice environment.

16

Just they withstand the elements,

There is an emergency exit on the patio,

17

which is part of that privacy fence.

18

the northwest corner of the patio.

It's a gate in

19

As far as further security for the area, we

20

don't want to attract any bad attention or bad people

21

in the area, so we do have HD night vision cameras.

22

They'll be on the exterior and the interior of the
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1

building, and those will be recording at all times.

2

Further decor, this is something that is not

3

certain.

4

resident and commercial.

5

nice to just include a somewhat summer-themed mural,

6

just some artwork, because who doesn't like artwork?

7

And beyond that, we plan on having colorful umbrellas

8

at most of the tables, which will be another thing that

9

will inhibit sound.

10

We're going to talk to our neighbors,
We have the idea it might be

Flower boxes, tall ones, short ones,

11

individual boxes and flowers.

12

am with somebody who loves to do gardening.

13

plans to often contribute with annuals, perennials, all

14

sorts of stuff to really bring some color into the

15

patio.

16

I'm lucky enough where I
So she

And that would be what we have as far as that.
We want you to know that we have thought

17

about this deeply because it's a part of where we live.

18

Our experience in the brewing world and the restaurant

19

world and with professional management experience also,

20

I'm a big fan of anticipating problems and try to

21

handle them before they occur, and that includes noise.

22

One of the biggest things that I know that neighbors
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1

might be concerned about is parking.

2

We have ten spots that are getting -- they

3

will be striped along Meadowcrest and along with three

4

additional spots in the rear of the building, so that's

5

13, which are attached to the premises.

6

a deal worked out for some off-site parking, which will

7

add approximately an additional 15 parking spots at the

8

dry cleaners, which will be down the alley.

9

comes down to it, we will offer valet if need be, or

10

And we do have

If it

it's just a short walk behind Mattones.

11

So, like I said, if there's issues, we will

12

try to handle them and address them and approach them

13

in a way as a neighbor would.

14

We're open to questions and having

15

conversations.

And I guess just want to say from our

16

family to yours thank you for hopefully welcoming us to

17

the community and hearing us out today.

18

very much.

19

MS. JARR:

20

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

21

MR. KOBLISH:

22

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

So thank you

Thank you.
Thank you so much for that.
Thank you.
Maggie, does the staff have any
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1

presentation you'd like to give before we ask members

2

of the audience for questions and comments?

3

MS. JARR:

4

Sure.

Thank you, Chairman Boyd.

I just want to provide some additional detail

5

related to staff's analysis of this zoning request.

6

Our main concern was anticipating any potential adverse

7

impacts to the surrounding residential neighborhoods.

8

So our primary focus was really on parking and noise.

9

So first I just want to go over, we developed

10

a parking calculation worksheet to clearly illustrate

11

how the minimum number of spaces is calculated and also

12

how the applicant is proposing to meet that

13

requirement.

14

So as you just heard, the applicant is

15

required to provide one parking space, due in part to

16

the 2000-square foot exemption that is granted to

17

properties within our C-1 commercial district.

18

But BevMasters, LLC is proposing to exceed

19

that minimum and provide what we calculate to be 12 in

20

total, if, in fact, one of those spots in the rear of

21

the building, it's anticipated to be an accessible

22

space.
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1

MR. KOBLISH:

2

MS. JARR:

For ADA?

That's right.

So there will be two spaces on the property

3
4

at the rear, one of which will be accessible.

And

5

then, as you just heard, ten additional spaces along

6

Meadowcrest, which will be newly striped as angled

7

parking.

8

Per the code, this on right-of-way parking

9

can be counted towards off-street parking within the

10
11

C-1 district.
And we were really, as a staff, pleased to

12

hear that the applicant had looked to secure additional

13

parking even outside of those 12 spaces and that they

14

had secured additional private off-site parking through

15

an agreement with that neighboring business owner.

16

Now, in addition to parking, staff wanted to

17

ensure that applicant had addressed concerns regarding

18

noise, as the commercial property has residential areas

19

both to the north and to the east.

20

that it's typical for commercial properties along a

21

corridor like 31st Street to have a public alley

22

located behind the building and single-family homes on

I think we all know
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1

the other side of that alley.

2

important to staff to understand how the applicant was

3

taking this proximity into account.

4

And that said, it was

The outdoor dining area will be fully

5

enclosed and accessible only from the interior of the

6

brewery.

7

be provided from the patio to the parking lot for

8

emergency access.

9

Only one egress exit, as you just heard, will

Sound is going to be buffered by that

10

existing privacy fence as well as the parking area at

11

the public alley and those plantings on the patio,

12

which are going to contribute to some sound mitigation.

13

And really importantly, the applicant is

14

familiar with and is committed to complying with the

15

village's nuisance regulations.

16

So just to wrap up staff's comments, I just

17

have a few points to cover.

18

a permitted use in our C-1 commercial district and that

19

this request for outdoor dining is really an extension

20

of that use.

21
22

First, that the brewery is

The applicant is going to comply with all
requirements for outdoor dining areas and has addressed
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staff's concerns related to parking and noise.

2

And then lastly, just to highlight that this

3

Special Use is consistent with the village's long-range

4

plan, which envisions diverse business areas that are

5

going to provide options and amenities to the residents

6

of LaGrange Park.

7
8

So with that I will turn it back over to you,
Chairman.
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

9

10

Thank you so much.

May I ask either you or our village attorney,

11

Ms. Keating, would you just explain why we're here so

12

these people in the audience, they understand what the

13

role is for our Zoning Board, that we make

14

recommendations based on certain factors with respect

15

to granting a Special Use and their recommendations

16

made to the village board.

17

What are some of the things we're looking for when we

18

are deciding whether to make that recommendation to the

19

board.

20
21
22

MS. KEATING:
it.

Can somebody explain that?

Chairman Boyd, I'll take a stab at

Let me know if I miss anything.
As Maggie just said, the underlying use of
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1

this property, the brew pub, is already a permitted

2

use.

3

to vote on whether there should be a brew pub here.

So the Planning

4

&

Zoning Commission is not here

Another thing that is not happening here is

5

that there's no noncompliance with the use of the

6

property, the structure of the building, or the

7

parking.

8

our zoning code.

9

So they're not asking for any variations from

A Special Use is an accessory use of property

10

that, because it may have different impacts on the

11

permitted use on the neighbors, the applicant is

12

required to get -- to go before the Planning

13

Committee to get permission to do the Special Use.

14

Zoning

And the applicant, as he has done, has argued

15

why he needs the factors of a Special Use.

16

read them really quickly.

17

&

And ultimately the Planning

&

I'll just

Zoning

18

Commission makes findings on these approval standards

19

for a Special Use.

20

village board of trustees.

21

trustees are the ultimate arbiters of whether the

22

Special Use permit for the outdoor dining should be

Those findings of fact go to the
The village board of

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630.653.1622

23 E. 31st Street, LaGrange Park
April 20, 2021

22

1

allowed.

2

"First factor is the establishment,

3

maintenance, and operation of the Special Use" -- and

4

whenever I say "Special Use," I mean outdoor dining --

5

"in this specific location proposed will not endanger

6

the public health, safety, or general welfare of any

7

person of the community.

8
9
10

"Second, the proposed Special Use is
compatible with adjacent properties and other
properties (inaudible).

11

"C, the Special Use is in a specific location

12

proposed is consistent with the spirit and intent of

13

the zoning code and comprehensive plan."

14

Did I leave anything out, Maggie?

15

MS. JARR:

16

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

17

brilliant.

18

I don't think so.

That covers it.

Ms. Keating, thank you.

That was

Exactly what we needed.
I just want to make sure that everybody in

19

the room understands that we're not judging the use of

20

the establishment.

21

use meets the three criteria for granting a Special

22

Use.

We're deciding whether the outdoor

That's it.
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1

So appreciate that.

2

Does staff or the petitioners have any other

3

comments before we ask members of the public for

4

questions or comments?

5

MS. JARR:

Nothing from staff.

6

MR. KOBLISH:

The only thing I'd like to add, I was

7

just going to mention that we hope to partner with

8

other local businesses as much as possible.

That was

9

one thing that I failed to mention earlier.

That's

10

all.

11

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Thank you.

12

Maggie, why don't you be the ringmaster there, let

13

people there that are there in the Village Hall to come

14

and present questions or testimony that they would like

15

us to hear and consider.

16
17

MS. JARR:

Sure.

Thank you, Chairman.

We are going to have folks step up to the

18

podium to make comments.

19

applicants to scoot their chairs just so the video can

20

cover it and we've got good coverage with the speaker,

21

which is also our mic.

22

And so I am going to ask the

So why don't we have folks maybe in the order
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1

that we took your names, if you would like to ask a

2

question or make a comment, I would invite you to come

3

to the podium.

4

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

I will let you all speak as long as

5

you like, but we typically have a three-minute limit,

6

so keep that in mind as you are talking.

7

going to reserve the right to sort of hold all these

8

comments together, then go back to the petitioner.

9

doesn't make much sense, we've got multiple people

10
11
12
13

And I am

It

talking to keep going back and forth, back and forth.
Do you think that will work?

Why don't we

try it that way to see and then we'll go from there.
MS. JARR:

So we'll take all the comments,

14

and then we'll have the petitioner and/or staff respond

15

after we've heard from everybody here.

16
17
18

MR. GASKELL:

My name is Drew Gaskell.

I live on

the 300-block of Castle in Robinhood Estates.
My wife and I have lived in Robinhood Estates

19

since 2014, and like a lot of families in LaGrange

20

Park, we've moved into the community wanting to be part

21

of the community.

22

renovated a home where the homeowners had lived there

Our kids go to Forest Road.
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1

42 years.

2

business and what they were planning.

3

hearing that the board has already approved their use

4

and that the proprietors have already planned on

5

parking, and on noise, and that we are just kind of

6

looking for an outdoor patio.

7

And I was here to kind of hear about the
And I love

So for that, I would say that my family

8

completely supports it.

We love being able to walk to

9

places in our neighborhood, in Robinhood Estates.

We

10

walk to coffee in LaGrange.

We have the brand-new taco

11

place.

12

And I think it's great to have another local business

13

with people who know LaGrange Park, who are invested in

14

the community, who live here, their kids live here, and

15

I'm really excited to have something else that our

16

neighbors and our family, extended family and people

17

can gather and kind of enjoy getting vaccinated and

18

getting back to normal.

19

full support of it.

20

today.

Mattones has the patio that everyone loves.

21

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

22

MR. LOWERY:

So my family and - - we are in

Thank you for having the hearing

Thank you.

My name is Mike Lowery.

I live at
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1

1238 Community.

We've been in the neighborhood for

2

15 years and I am raising two daughters here.

3

to thank Jim and Shane for investing in LaGrange Park.

4

I think it's great to see new business flourishing on

5

31st.

6

living in Chicago, it's extremely important to have

7

outdoor dining because we all want to be outside.

8

of today, we just saw it snowed.

9

I want to be outside.

So I just wanted to offer my support.

I want

And say

As

When the sun is out,

And you got my full support.

10

MR. KOBLISH:

Thank you.

11

MR. BONJEAN:

Adam Bonjean.

Yeah.

When I came in

12

here today, I was coming out to support you guys, but

13

after hearing that you guys are actually locals, and

14

you guys done such a beautiful job for pulling this

15

together, I am sold all the way.

16

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

17

don't know what it is.

18

Just speak into the microphone so we can all hear you.

19

MR. BONJEAN:

Sir, it's hard to hear you.

I

You are moving around or not.

I was just saying that coming in here

20

I was definitely supportive and I live right across the

21

street.

22

After hearing the owners are local and a part of the

Looking for a place to enjoy with my family.
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1

community, I even support you even more.

2

for it.

3

MR. KOBLISH:

4

MR. O'MALLEY:

So I'm all

Thank you.
My name is Michael O'Malley.

5

resident for 26 years now.

6

in college.

7

into the town, into the business.

8

We appreciate the Village for expanding.

9

of this in the town throughout.

Been a

Raised two twin boys, now

Definitely happy that you guys are coming
We appreciate it.
We need more

Obviously being a

10

resident there, seeing Mattones transition and watching

11

Posto open is a great thing for the area.

12

My biggest concern, getting to experience

13

Mattones and their growth and their busyness as an

14

entity, is parking, of course.

15

ten spots in off-street without blocking the sidewalk

16

and/or taking over part of the street is a big concern

17

of mine from a safety perspective.

18

How you're going to fit

The secondary thing is residents obviously

19

down the block taking up spaces when Mattones is busy

20

and you're busy, how you're going to address that and

21

are we going to have wanderers down the block

22

throughout, you know, I don't know the normal business
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1

hours, but I know the beer garden is open until 10:00.

2

Some people will funnel back inside so you're talking

3

maybe 1:00, 2:00 in the morning.

4

that congestion down the block?
It's a quiet area.

5

Are we going to have

I know we're kind of in a

6

lull coming off of a high of LaGrange Road, everything

7

falls down.

8

area.

9

in, I don't know what your plan is to control that, but

Nighttime noise reverberates through the

So a speaker system that you guys want to put

10

I know I'll hear it down my block.

11

pulling into Mattones in their car with their radio

12

today.

13

hours of the night?

14

what you're doing; I'm just concerned for those

15

factors, being a resident there.

16

moving.

17

the guys at Mattones, Vito and Quinn are my buddies now

18

because they know me so well.

19

just the same.

20

you all the best of luck.

21

our concerns being a resident.

22

I hear the guys

Do I want to want to hear something blaring all
No.

Not to say I'm negative about

I don't plan on

But I do plan on supporting your business as

MR. KOBLISH:

I hope to know you guys

I appreciate what you're doing.

I wish

Thank you for listening to

Thank you.
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1

MS. D'AMICO:

My name is Anna D'Amico.

I live two

2

doors down from Mike O'Malley, a little bit closer to

3

where you guys are at.

4

business.

5

same.

And welcome.

I think it's great.

6

I'm all for your

My concerns were the

My concerns were, again, as Mike had just

7

came across with, is the parking, and the noise, and

8

the hours.

9

hours that were going to be with the outdoor beer

I don't remember what you had said the

10

garden.

But, again, welcome to the community.

11

all for it.

12

is my main concern.

13

MR. KOBLISH:

14

MS. JARR:

15

MR. MEDRANO:

I am

It's just that the issue with the parking

Thank you.

If you can project.
Yes, yes.

Thank you.

So thank you,

16

Jim and Shane, for what you're doing.

17

Medrano.

18

1131 Meadowcrest.

19

So we know each other quite well on that street right

20

off the tavern.

21
22

This is my wife over here.

So I'm David
We live on

So we're neighbors to Anna and Mike.

So as a businessman, I definitely respect
what you're doing and I think it's commendable.
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1

good for the village.

2

friends here with the parking, because it is a real

3

issue on Saturday nights and some Friday nights with

4

the amount, the number of vehicles that actually park

5

even off of the residential area, and that's not

6

usually controlled very much.

7

add to that so that is a concern.

8
9

I echo some of the concerns my

I think this would just

I would also be interested in knowing about
the capacity in the beer garden, how many people can

10

actually sit there on any given evening.

11

whole restaurant as a whole.

12

Even the

My understanding is everything closed at

13

10:00, but I think it's just the beer garden so maybe I

14

can get some clarification on that as well.

15

really know when the whole thing actually closes down

16

on any given day of the week.

17

Just to

Then other than that, you know, I would --

18

I'm very curious.

You mentioned like it was a high-end

19

place.

20

what's the average price of a beverage, of a brewed

21

beverage?

22

supporting you in every way we can.

This is just for my personal curiosity.

But I certainly -- we look forward to
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But the noise and decibel level is also

1

2

something I wanted to bring up.

3

village and staff would have some kind of criteria to

4

be able to measure that, because we do hear noise

5

coming from every direction.

6

understand that sometimes Friday nights and Saturday

7

nights there's going to be a little bit more noise, a

8

little bit, but we are sensitive to that.

9

family with two kids as well.

10

I'm assuming the

We're tolerant.

We

I have a

That's what I wanted to

share.
But, again, thank you and congratulations on

11
12

this initiative.

13

MR. KOBLISH:

14

MS. JARR:

15

MS. CAMREN:

Thank you.

We have one more.
I am Heather Camren.

I actually know

16

Shane and Jim quite well, and I did not realize you

17

guys were the owner.

18

sorry.

19

It's hard with the mask.

So

So my only concerns really are, of course,

20

the noise and parking.

So I was wondering, because

21

they say outside dining, are you guys have a restaurant

22

also?

Is it just the brewery?

I know you guys are
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1

going to answer it all together.

2

am

I had no idea.

3

MR. KOBLISH:

4

MS. HANSEN:

5

MS. JARR:

So thank you.

But I

So congratulations.

Thank you very much.
Thank you.

Great.

Is there anyone tuning in

6

virtually who is planning to give public comment?

7

don't think we've heard everybody provide their name at

8

the start, but I just want to double-check.

9

Sounds like none.

10

public comment.

12

Good.

13

15

Okay.

So I think we're all wrapped up then with

11

14

Everybody got a chance who wanted to?

I see heads shaking.
So, Chairman Boyd, would you like -- oh, go

ahead.
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

I was going to say would you all

16

like to respond to some of those questions about

17

parking, noise, price of a beverage, that sort of

18

thing?

19

20

I

MR. KOBLISH:

Yes.

Happy to.

So seems to be the two largest things, kind

21

of as everyone expected, was the noise and the parking.

22

The noise, we plan on, maybe with assistance from the
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1

village, if not we'll do it ourselves, is measuring

2

decibel levels, managing that ourselves with having a

3

manager on duty at all times, and also community

4

feedback.

5

loud even following the village ordinance, we can try

6

to be neighborly and make adjustments as needed.

If it is

if there is music that is too

I'm trying to -- parking.

7

So there's going

8

to be ten angled spots along Meadowcrest.

I think you

9

too, Mr. Boyle, he had one of his associates draw up

10

some plans.

It will be similar to near Ace Hardware

11

where it's the angled parking spots.

12

village engineer that they could fit ten spots along

13

that area.

I was told by the

14

In the back there would be an ADA compliant

15

space, two more, and then as mentioned there would be

16

additional, what we're calling off-site parking

17

available at the dry cleaners.

18

Jiffy Lube, but that being a corporate place, it's been

19

hard to reach people there.

20

of them also.

21

he has had an agreement with them for temporary use

22

before, so I can reach out to them as well.

And I've reached out to

So I'm hoping to get ahold

I know Vito with Mattones mentioned that

And if it
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1

does become a problem, we'd be happy to offer valet

2

similar to what Posto does.

3

Beyond that, just to clarify hours, I know I

4

kind of went over that quickly.

As of right now,

5

between the two of us, we've talked about this in every

6

which angle you could probably imagine, and we plan on

7

being open until 10:00.

8

later than 11:00.

9

for us would be closing the business on Friday and

I can't see it being open

But our plan, what would be ideal

10

Saturday nights at 10:00.

11

bar.

12

friends just to have time together.

13

to be a rowdy place.

14

entire establishment at 10:00, mainly because it's

15

going to be us running it and we've got kids.

16

are no fun anymore.

17

This is not supposed to be a

It's supposed to be a place for neighbors and
It's not supposed

So, yeah, we plan on closing the

So we

Beyond that, I think there is a question

18

about prices.

There will be non-alcoholic beverages

19

available, sodas, waters.

20

some craft sodas that I'll make myself.

21

if those will be available right when the doors open,

22

but that's something I would love to get into.

I even plan on diving into
I'm not sure
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Most beers, let's say just like classic lager

1

2

or pale ale, I would say $6 or $7.

3

something that's a little bit more exotic, or special

4

ingredients, or a higher alcohol content, those will be

5

served in a smaller glass probably for $8 or $9

6

accordingly.

7

experience has been over the last eight years in the

8

business.

9

Those are estimates.

If you have

That's what my

So those are probably somewhat mainstream

10

prices.

11

we're going to have two right out the gate.

12

going to be a pale ale and the one is going to be the

13

LGP Lager.

14

happy hour prices.

15

That's what our goal is.

Our flagships are
One is

We plan on serving that and we'll discuss

When I said "upscale," I meant that it would

16

be nice.

You know, nice couches, nice comfortable

17

environment without making it have to be a special

18

event to go there.

19

I am trying to remember questions.

20

Food offerings.

So I mentioned earlier that

21

we planned on partnering with local businesses.

22

plan on offering prepackaged snacks, chips, pretzels,
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1

beef jerky, that sort of thing.

2

local vendor, we would even have prepackaged meat and

3

cheese boards, prepackaged paninis, stuff like that.

4

But then offering -- I have talked to Vito briefly

5

about this with Mattones, a partnership where we could

6

offer, I'll have Mattones menus on the tables and we

7

can place orders through them, and we could work out a

8

delivery system with Mattones, or people can order food

9

in.

10

And if we can find a

We won't have a food preparation on-site, so

11

we won't have a kitchen, but we will have things

12

available for snacks.

13
14

15
16
17

I want to say those are the questions.
MS. JARR:

The last maybe question that we still

need to address is about capacity.
MR. KOBLISH:

Oh, capacity, yes.

Thank you.

So on the drawings originally from our

18

architect, he was coming at it from an approach of

19

let's maximize seating, let's maximize seating.

20

that's on there on one of the original drawings, I'd

21

like to let you know that it's been updated.

22

lowered the outside seating count.

So if

We have

It's going to be
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1

between 45 and a 50.

2

want it to be just jam packed sardine can in there

3

because it's not comfortable and also that contributes

4

to more noise.

5

for the indoor capacity.

6

It was 13 tables, but we don't

So about 45 outside and then about 55

And that's absolute maxed out.

We are

7

putting in a second bathroom to help also alleviate

8

those needs for that additional capacity.

9

MS. JARR:

If I can just add quickly since we're on

10

the subject of capacity.

I just want to note that

11

before the number of occupants and the layout of the

12

tables and the chairs are finalized, that the village

13

is going to evaluate all plans as well for compliance

14

with the applicable building and fire codes.

15

MR. KOBLISH:

That is an approximation.

16

MS. JARR:

17

I'll just underscore the point that Mr. Keblish

Yes.

Yes.

18

just made about the parking that our village engineer

19

has been working on the configuration for Meadowcrest.

20

And I will ask Patrick Boyle if he has anything to add

21

on that topic or on the measure of sound.

22

MR. BOYLE:

Yes.

As far as the parking goes, the
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1

engineer obviously designed that per our standards.

2

Jim mentioned, similar to Ace Hardware or the new Beach

3

Avenue parking, ten spaces fit there.

4

would be curb stops preventing bumpers from hanging

5

over the sidewalks, things like that.

6

As

There obviously

And as far as the noise, typically that's

7

handled through the police department.

We do have a

8

decibel reader.

9

making sure what is too loud, but the police department

That's not always a foolproof way of

10

generally does a pretty good job of being able to come

11

out, talk to folks, understand what's going on, and

12

limit -- and obviously the more they come, the greater

13

the issue it would be and greater enforcement.

14

So it's something that's typically dealt with

15

on a complaint basis.

16

outdoor patios have any complaints or many complaints

17

about noise at this time.

18

MS. JARR:

No.

19

FIRE CHIEF MAGGOS:

And I don't believe our other

So ...

There are none.
Patrick or Maggie, if I could

20

just jump in.

I think you reminded me this afternoon,

21

we had the police reach out and do a study of the other

22

two facilities and search their record, and they had no
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1

noise complaints regarding their outdoor patios.

2

doesn't mean neighbors can't hear it, but there were no

3

significant issues to where they felt they had to call

4

the police.

5

That

The other issue is, in our village ordinance,

6

our noise ordinance is pretty basic, but it does say

7

you cannot have discoordinate noises or vibrations any

8

time after 9:00 p.m., between the hours of 9:00 p.m.

9

and 7:00 a.m.

Obviously, if there was something

10

significant at that point, there is a specific

11

ordinance where we can enforce it.

12

Again, it's a little subjective, but it's

13

worked in the past with all of our other businesses up

14

to this point.

15
16
17
18

19

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Do we have any other comment from staff or
for the petitioner?
MS. JARR:

None from staff and none from the

petitioner.

20

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

21

MS. JARR:

22

Excellent.

Well, thank you.

Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry, we have one.

We might have one clarifying questioning from the
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1

audience here.
MS. CAMREN:

2

Yes.

I just have a question because I

3

thought when we started - - I'm going to get the names

4

wrong -- Cathleen said what we were

5

was that it was outdoor dining, but if there's not

6

food, I'm confused.

7

it.

8
9

10
11

MS. JARR:

the whole point

Maybe I missed that.

So the question

let me turn my camera

on -- the question is the role or the balance of food
and beverage, I believe, if I understand that.
MS. CAMREN:

No, I'm guess I'm just -- it says

12

outside door dining, but there's not food.

13

I just want to understand.

14

I don't get

MS. JARR:

Outdoor dining in terms of outdoor

15

seating.

16

reviewed.

17

there will also be prepackaged foods available for sale

18

for patrons.

19

Yes.

I don't

And that is the applicant just

In addition to the beverages brewed on-site,

MR. BOYLE:

And the zoning code specifies outdoor

20

seating.

21

that's why it's called dining versus outdoor seating.

22

All of that is just outdoor dining.

MR. O'MALLEY:

So

Clarifying question on the parking.
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1

On the east side of Meadowcrest that first zone there,

2

is that a No Parking Zone by the code?

3

4
5

6
7

MR. BOYLE:

That, I don't know.

I don't believe

there's parking at that corner.
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Repeat the question for us.

We

didn't hear it.
MR. O'MALLEY:

Sure.

I'm asking about parking on

8

the east side of Meadowcrest across from the

9

establishment, is that zoned as a No Parking on that

10

side of the street being within the first hundred yards

11

of the 31st Street.

12
13

MR. BOYLE:

We would have to confirm, but, yeah, I

believe there's no parking.

14

MR. KOBLISH:

There is a sign.

15

MR. MEDRANO:

If this is out of the scope, forgive

16

me, but it's more for the village.

The two

17

establishments, Mattones and your brewery, is there a

18

consideration for how the village could maybe plant

19

taller trees and really create a great hedge solution

20

all along the perimeter, which would really enhance the

21

view for the neighbors, and I think also create greater

22

sound isolation.

And I would like to propose that
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1

maybe for another hearing that we actually figure out

2

how we could help do that because I think it would be a

3

win-win for everybody, especially with a long-term

4

solution in mind.

5

MS. JARR:

6

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Absolutely.

Thank you for that comment.

So I think we are now ready to move

7

on to have the board ask questions.

8

as the most junior member of the committee, I'm going

9

to have you go first.

10

MEMBER BARTHOLOMAI:

Mr. Bartholomai,

Thank you Mr. Chairman.

I

11

think it's seven years in now but possibly still the

12

most junior member.

13

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

We have a very seasoned committee

14

here.

If you don't know, we're all volunteers, we

15

don't get paid, and we're all LaGrange Park residents.

16

Some of us have been here longer than others.

17
18
19

But, Mr. Bartholomai, thank you for your
service.

Go ahead.

MEMBER BARTHOLOMAI:

It's very similar to what we

20

did for Mattones one or two years ago.

And, of course,

21

my one question that I had was going to be what has

22

been the level of comfort of the neighbors with
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1

Mattones, and if there were any violations, or police

2

were called, or problems with sound or patrons.

3

appears that that that is not the case.

4
5

So I guess that means that I don't have any
questions at this time.

6

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

7

MEMBER LEE:

8

9

It

Mr. Lee, you're next.

Thank you, Chairman Boyd.

Again, I think the parking is probably the
largest thing that I have concerns about.

So hearing

10

now reduction in patrons, 45 outside, 55 inside is

11

helpful, and I think

12

us to hear, those of us viewing at home, but I thought

13

I heard Pat say that there were restrictions on parking

14

on Meadowlark for the first X number of yards.

15

does that mean?

16

the map, you're going north on Meadowcrest and it

17

splits off, then you go to Woodside, you got

18

Meadowcrest going on a Y direction on top here.

19

you know, again, it's hard for

So what

Because to me it's like when I look at

Do people park there and just walk down?

20

Because I hear dry cleaners overload.

It's the south

21

side, but how many people are just going to say I'm

22

just going to park here because it's a lot closer?
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1

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

2

MEMBER LEE:

Is that directed at Mr. Boyle?

It's directed to the staff who is

3

familiar with parking restrictions on Meadowcrest and

4

Woodside.

5

MR. BOYLE:

Yeah.

So, Jim, you might not have

6

heard, so on the east side of Meadowcrest going north

7

to the alley is no parking.

8

further north on Meadowcrest, and there's on-street

9

parking on Woodside.

10

There is on-street parking

I'd have to confirm, but I don't believe

11

there is parking around the island between Woodside and

12

Meadowcrest.

13

MEMBER LEE:

Then I also heard that there is

14

potentially overflow parking at Mattones.

15

arrangement with Mattones?

16

MR. KOBLISH:

Is that an

Question for the applicant.

Thank you for asking.

No.

I spoke

17

with Vito, and he essentially addressed the same

18

concerns that everyone else has brought up thus far,

19

and he essentially said we have our own lot and we do

20

struggle sometimes with patrons.

21
22

I know that our immediate neighbor, Crown
Trophy, there's been crossover there, which can cause

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630.653.1622

23 E. 31st Street, LaGrange Park
April 20, 2021

45
1

conflict between the two businesses.

2

someone were to park in the lot, he wouldn't be upset

3

and have them towed, but he could not promise us

4

spaces.

5

elsewhere.

So we tried to seek additional spaces

6
7

Vito said if

So there is no arrangement with Mattones.
MEMBER LEE:

You mentioned that you'd like to get

8

ahead of Crowns.

Thinking through, how do you plan on

9

addressing when people are parking on Woodside or

10

Meadowcrest and not using the overflow arrangement of

11

dry cleaners or valet service?

12

MR. KOBLISH:

One of the things that comes to mind

13

is we could post signs at the entrance of the building

14

instructing that, you know, to not park on those

15

residential streets, that it affects our neighbors, and

16

to please follow the off-site parking plan as

17

instructed.

18

reoccurring issue, then we would be happy to have a

19

valet company, which I think would make it much easier

20

on people.

21
22

And, like I said, if this does become a

MEMBER LEE:

Another question, obviously when the

weather is nice, you mention when the weather is nice
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1

in Chicago in the summer, people like to come out and

2

enjoy the outdoors, and I'd agree with that.

3

Do you have plans for when the weather is

4

colder, say, spring or fall, are you planning on

5

putting heat lamps in the beer garden to increase the

6

amount of time in the year that you can enjoy it?

7

MR. KOBLISH:

That would be the goal to have.

8

People like to sit outside even on a fall day.

9

discussed two different options.

We have

One being the propane

10

heaters that have the dome at the top.

11

between the tables.

12

architect a form of radiant heat where it almost looks

13

similar to a fluorescent light, has a reflector with a

14

filament that runs through it, and those would be wall

15

mounted.

16

We put those in

And we've also discussed with our

But I think the propane options that would be

17

in between the tables might make more people more

18

comfortable instead of just the ones on the exterior.

19

MEMBER LEE:

Wonderful.

20

Now one more question.

Are there any issues

21

with -- one of the by-products of brewing can be a

22

smell that people don't find to be too pleasing.
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1

are you doing to mitigate any risk of smells leaving

2

the establishment affecting the neighboring areas?

3

MR. KOBLISH:

So in eight years of professional

4

brewing, it has not been a problem.

5

that I worked was in a very dense neighborhood in

6

Evanston with neighbors immediately behind us.

7

not have complaints or anything filed against us, or

8

even people coming in and asking us to stop any form.

9

We had no complaints.

10

One of the places

We did

If there does happen to be complaints by the

11

neighbors, there are pieces of equipment that instead

12

of venting the exhaust to the outside, it actually

13

condenses it back into a liquid and it would then be

14

down the drain instead of venting.

15
16
17

So it's essentially filtered and condensed
instead of just passively vented.
MEMBER LEE:

Great.

Very helpful.

Thanks.

I

18

don't have any other questions, Chairman Boyd.

I

19

think, again, the two biggest issues are around parking

20

and then just noise, right.

21

would encourage the applicant to continue working with

22

neighbors and get as little impact on the neighbors as

On the parking side, I
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1

you can and use of those other lots.

2

Then on the noise side, I think people's

3

concern would be you have loud inebriated people at

4

night.

5

that can mitigate that, providing food, having a good

6

partner there would be critical.

7

close the beer garden down earlier, say, 9:00 p.m.,

8

inside down at 10:00 p.m., et cetera.

9
10

It seems like there is things that you're doing

But love the concept, love what you're
bringing to the area.

11

MR. KOBLISH:

12

MS. HANSEN:

13

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

14

MEMBER DOMAGALSKI:

15

You could potentially

Thank you.

Thank you.
Thank you.
Ms. Domagalski, you're up next.
I want to reiterate what

Mr. Lee just said.

16

I think it's fantastic use and I was excited

17

to see this application come through.

18

be a great addition to what we have here in LaGrange

19

Park.

20

I did have some questions.

I think it would

I don't know if

21

the village staff is the best to answer or if the

22

applicant is.

But it's having to do with the angled
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1

spacing on Meadowcrest.

2

striping it or, it's in sort of rough condition, that

3

paving there.

4

paving quality or are we just striping it?

5

Are we just talking about

Are we talking about improving the

MR. BOYLE:

At this point it would just be striped

6

in its current condition to allow for the parking.

7

the possibility of having that repaved during a water

8

main project, that area would get new pavement and new

9

striping after that project.

10

MEMBER DOMAGALSKI:

But

Is part of that, if we did the

11

water main, would there be an opportunity to add like

12

where we have -- I'm looking at the plan.

13

move it up.

14

parking, there's a striped area.

15

to make that like a landscaped island, maybe plant a

16

tree, to possibly increase the spraying of the beer

17

garden?

18

I'll try to

But at the end of the parking, the angled

MR. BOYLE:

Yeah.

Would it be possible

I think there is some discussion

19

in the works for some streetscape along 31st Street.

20

So I think that would fall under that umbrella.

21

don't think that it would be something that we would do

22

in this project.

But, yes, those parkways and
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1

incorporating landscaping and dressing that up is

2

certainly something the village is looking at doing.

3

MS. JARR:

Yes, absolutely.

4

MEMBER DOMAGALSKI:

5

MS. JARR:

6

MEMBER DOMAGALSKI:

Great.

It might not be coming right away but -Another question I had had to

7

do with parking also.

You talked about having an

8

arrangement with the dry cleaner nearby.

9

something in writing?

Has that been presented to the

10

village?

11

shake or something more concrete?

12

What's the status of that?

MR. KOBLISH:

Is that

Is it a hand

Thank you for asking.

I have spoken

13

with the building owner and the tenant, and they are

14

both on board with it.

15

one hour a week of overlapping business.

16

now it was verbal.

17

the idea.

18

support.

19

would be something in writing just for protection of

20

both parties.

21
22

There would only be, I think,
As of right

I wanted to see how they felt about

They said they were happy to help, happy to
And when it gets closer to the date, there

MEMBER DOMAGALSKI:

And the other question that I

wanted to ask is, have you applied for a liquor license
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1

to this facility or when does that process come into

2

the equation?
MR. KOBLISH:

3

I have put in an application for a

4

Village Class "B" Liquor License, but I cannot apply

5

for a state liquor license until or a little bit

6

further into our progress.

7

village yet, but I'm also securing liquor liability

8

insurance as of right now and so the application is in,

9

yes.

10
11

MEMBER DOMAGALSKI:

I have not heard from the

Okay.

That's good to know.

This question may be for staff.

Maggie, it's

12

your first meeting with us and it maybe has to do with

13

the type of application this is.

14

do some sound analysis on prior applications.

15

have just been for Nazareth and their stadium, which

16

obviously had a public address system.

17

other projects that I was involved in with reader

18

boards for drive-through restaurants, those types of

19

uses, they have limits and things on the sound.

20

just wanted to get a little bit further into what the

21

village's requirements are, what we can do besides

22

maybe having the police out there with some equipment.

But I recall we did
It may

But I know in
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1

MS. JARR:

2

Sure.

Well, I'll invite other staff who might have

3

more examples to share from the past on how the noise

4

issue has been dealt with or what methods have been

5

used to make that measure.

6

Does anybody on the line want to chime in

7

with any previous examples or discussion of what the

8

current standards are?

9

FIRE CHIEF MAGGOS:

I can comment on a couple

10

things.

11

subjective.

12

don't remember taking sound measurements, but I

13

remember when, previous to the latest score board

14

issue, when they were actually installing lights on the

15

football field and/or a new sound system, it was around

16

the same time, I think we actually had post speakers

17

facing a different direction based on concerns from the

18

neighbor.

19

Again, our noise ordinance is somewhat
And specific to Nazareth I believe, I

The other issue is when they decided to have

20

night games, they actually come to the village board

21

and they did a temporary use permit in regards or an

22

exemption to the noise ordinance until, I think,
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1

10:00 or 10:30 for the games.

2

nights they're going to have the games, and the village

3

authorizes that each season, if I remember correctly.

4

Obviously things were messed up with COVID.

5

They actually list the

The only other time that I believe we

6

actually measured noise where we actually took a

7

decibel meter is there was a car wash that was

8

installed at 31st and LaGrange Road, and we were

9

getting complaints from some of the neighbors, I think,

10

directly or that are very close, about that car wash

11

running and what the noise was.

12

subjective, we actually did a lot of research, talked

13

to our engineering companies, looked at decibels that

14

were in other codes, and we tried to work through that

15

based on that.

16

restricted the time or how that ended up.

17

wash ended up, I think, going away.

Because the sound was

And I don't remember if we actually
But that car

18

There were some concerns, and I just don't

19

remember how it was resolved, but we actually did go

20

out there and take some measurements to see where we

21

were at.

22

It may have been, now that I'm thinking about
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1

it, it was awhile ago, I think it was comparable.

2

think the noise is - - the car wash still didn't last,

3

but the noises coming out of there were no more

4

comparable, I think, to a lawn mower or something.

5

did not seem to exceed.

6

I

It

One other was the -- there's an automotive

7

repair shop at 31st and Kenman, and they had a bell at

8

their facility, and they also, like when a car would

9

pull up, and the liquor store next door had a new

10

compressor that went in for their beer freezer.

11

the same resident in that area, I think, had made

12

complaints on both over that time.

13

And

So we got the -- I don't think we measured

14

decibels on the bell.

15

lower the bell noise.

16

We actually got the facility to

And we had the liquor store actually erect a

17

fence around the compressor unit, if I remember

18

correctly, to reduce the noise and put a wood fence up.

19

And that seemed to resolve the issue.

20

That's what I remember.

Staff may remember

21

more.

But that's how we've done it, again, because I

22

don't believe we have a specific decibel reading in our
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1
2

code, if I remember.
MEMBER DOMAGALSKI:

I just know we had a couple

3

discussions about it.

4

put up the emergency alert system.

5

so many years, I can't remember which case it was.

6

I know maybe it was somebody's generator, but anyway.

7

We've talked about that a lot.

8

Let's see.

9

Maybe it was when the village
I've been here for
But

To me, Special Use, the question

always is the operational questions that we have to

10

address them.

And from where I am sitting I think the

11

applicant has been very supportive

12

very open to working with everyone on them, so I think

13

that's great.

14

my questions.

applicant seems

And I think for now that's the extent of

15

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

16

MS. KEATING:

Thank you.
Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to

17

provide two clarifying comments to Commissioner

18

Domagalski's questions regarding the condition of

19

Meadowcrest.

20

We have two upcoming projects for the

21

upcoming fiscal year, which begins on May 1st.

22

a community development block grant application project
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1

for the grinding and resurfacing of Meadowcrest, and we

2

also plan to replace the water main in that particular

3

area.

4

the grinding and resurfacing of both Meadowcrest at

5

that location as well as the parking spaces.

So we have two projects that would necessitate

6

Depending on the timing of these projects and

7

how that timing aligns with the opening of this

8

particular business will determine whether or not those

9

spaces are marked in their current condition or whether

10

or not for a period of time they are resurfaced with a

11

new top and subsequent new striping that would occur.

12

But regardless of the timing of those two

13

projects, we hope to get them done before the business

14

is open to avoid any lost time or any inconvenience for

15

the business.

16

parking spaces made available when that business opens.

But regardless, there will be ten

17

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

18

MEMBER STUDWELL:

All right.
Hello.

Mr. Studwell?
Very impressive plan.

19

Love the idea.

I do have a question about the

20

lighting.

21

noise, but there's also light pollution that can

22

sometimes get into the neighborhoods nearby.

One of the things that we talked about is
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And it looks as though you're counting on

1

2

having stringed lights and things like that.

3

just worried about light coming over the top of the

4

fence when you're closing up, cleaning up, and the

5

effects on the neighborhood nearby.

6
7
8

9

But I am

Is there a way that you could address some of
those issues?
MR. KOBLISH:

Sure.

So essentially as you

mentioned, we plan on having the cafe-style string

10

lights with the Edison bulbs, little orange filaments.

11

It will be, I think, fairly dim.

12

You mentioned cleaning up at the end of the

13

night.

14

through, pick up glasses and sweep.

15

more than 10, 15 minutes tops.

16

foresee that being an issue, but if it does, we can

17

certainly talk about it.

18

That would be a very quick pass over, sweep
I would see it no

I don't -- I don't

One of the things that we did, one of the

19

measures we did take to address light pollution with

20

our close neighbors is our signage.

21

We're getting close right now, they're not concrete,

22

but our sign design that will be on the building on

We have plans.
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1

31st Street will be front lit, so that means it will

2

have lights that shine out, just lettering.

3

On the Meadowcrest side, however, they will

4

be back lit.

5

out into the neighborhood.

6

letters to, as you mentioned, cut down on light

7

pollution for neighbors.

8

MEMBER STUDWELL:

9

That way we don't have any lights shining

Okay.

It will be silhouetted

Thank you.

And then one of the other things is I've had

10

an opportunity to work for a brewer myself and I'm

11

trying to get a handle on scaling things down.

12

the world's largest brewer at the time, Anheuser-Busch,

13

and all I could remember is the logistics of moving

14

things in and out.

15

is how you're dealing with trash, how you're dealing

16

with, after you brewed the work, how do you get rid of

17

material that's now essentially trash.

18

the yeast afterwards.

19

that you're going to create just operating a business,

20

whether it's bringing in and out food or those items,

21

those materials that you need to brew your beer.

22

It was

And what I didn't see in the plans

And then also

And just the trash and refuse

So I saw that the entire back of the property
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1

is really cut off and utilized by pretty much the

2

patio, and I didn't see any place for dumpsters or

3

housing any kind of stuff like that.

4
5
6

That's a logistical issue that if you could
address that?
MR. KOBLISH:

Sure.

You're right.

That was not in

7

the plans that were submitted.

However, what we plan

8

on doing is, yes, having a dumpster.

9

the building, if you have the plan in front of you,

In the rear of

10

there's actually room for four or just over four

11

parking spaces.

12

small corral similar to our neighbor that will match

13

our fence, that will hold a dumpster inside of it.

14

One of those will actually have a

As far as waste product, our yeast will be

15

used as absolutely as many times as it will allow us to

16

be viable and healthy.

17

to go and be completely fine going down with

18

wastewater.

19

Otherwise, it actually is able

As far as the grain, as far as the grain, and

20

I do make pH adjustments as needed for wastewater.

21

Just if that's a concern.

22

The biggest thing is spent grain.
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1

definitely assure you that I make a lot less beer than

2

your previous employer.

3

the scale of our brewery is a five-barrel system;

4

1 U.S. beer barrel is 31 gallons.

5

is what I'll make at a time.

6

friends that are employees of the Brookfield Zoo, and

7

they're working on getting us in touch with some of the

8

folks there, because I believe they could use it for

9

animal feed or composting.

Nobody has brought it up.

So imagine ten kegs

The grain there, we have

And whatever that they're

10

not able to or want to take, would be bagged and

11

probably go in the dumpster.

12

So either compost or dumpster.

13

MEMBER STUDWELL:

14

MR. KOBLISH:

15
16
17
18

But

It that get pretty pungent

That's why it will be bagged.

That's

why it will be bagged.
MEMBER STUDWELL:

sitting in a dumpster for any

amount of time.
And you did answer one more question that I

19

was going to ask, and that is, taking the pH or

20

ensuring that the pH being discharged into the sewer

21

system was being controlled and wasn't putting an

22

overdue burden on the local facility because it can get
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1

pretty hairy at times.
MR. KOBLISH:

2

Well, I can get in touch with them

3

and see exactly what they would like to see come from

4

me.

5

be happy to do.

6

So that's something that I would be -- definitely

MEMBER STUDWELL:

Yeah.

Especially if you've got a

7

bad batch, which you obviously don't want ever, but it

8

does happen on occasion.

9

10
11
12

MR. KOBLISH:

Oxygen levels are not --

MEMBER STUDWELL:

Breweries dump everything into

the sewer system, so.
MR. KOBLISH:

pH and oxygen are definitely

13

considerations for wastewater.

14

addressing that.

15

MEMBER STUDWELL:

Yeah.

So thank you for

And I'm looking at the

16

plan right now on my own screen and I'm -- you've got

17

the hashed out area for the two ADA parking spaces.

18

Are you saying that the enclosure would be in front of

19

that, or behind that, or along side that?

20

exactly going to do that?

21
22

MR. KOBLISH:

How are you

It would be -- it would be the

northwest corner of the plot.
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Is that what you're asking?

1
2

MEMBER STUDWELL:

Yeah.

Then also what are you doing for your

3

4

deliveries?

5

spots with a delivery truck?

6

the grains and things like that, that's got to happen

7

on a regular basis as well?

8

9

Are you just going to occupy one of those

MR. KOBLISH:

Right.

Or if you're receiving

Any deliveries like that,

let's say from one of the vendors it's called country

10

malt, get once every probably two to three weeks.

11

would order one pallet worth of grain at a time, which

12

would conserve me two or sometimes even up to four

13

weeks.

14

brewing more often.

15

I

Hopefully we're very successful and I'll be

However, us being not open during the day, we

16

do have an overhead door so we would be taking

17

deliveries either in the alley and using a pallet jack

18

to pull them into the overhead door, or they would

19

essentially pull into the parkway spots, I would remove

20

the pallet of grain or whatever ingredients it might

21

be, pull it into the overhead door, and then they would

22

be off.
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MEMBER STUDWELL:

1

Okay.

Then where would you store

2

it?

3

per se.

4

looks like it was pretty well utilized for the

5

Would you store it -- I didn't see a storage room
Every square inch of your -- of your plan

MR. KOBLISH:

That was the idea.

Right.

So the ingredients, there's going to be

6

7

shelving.

8

food containers for any extra grains, specialty grains

9

that I might have.

10

So there's going to be essentially plastic

But both grains will remain on the

pallet and raised off the ground.

11

Point --

12

MEMBER STUDWELL:

13

MR. KOBLISH:

14

And where would you put them?

They would be within the production

area.

15

MEMBER STUDWELL:

16

MR. KOBLISH:

Okay.

So if you're looking at this one

17

here, they come in white bags.

18

essentially in this area here (indicating).

19

So they would just be

Then all of our hops and yeast and anything

20

else would be in the walk-in cooler, unless it's a

21

chemical, which will have a specific cleaning chemical

22

storage shelving unit.
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1

MEMBER STUDWELL:

Thank you.

2

MR. KOBLISH:

3

MEMBER STUDWELL:

4

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

5

COMMISSIONER LAMPERT:

Thank you.
That's all, Chairman Boyd.
Mr. Lampert.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

6

Appreciate it.

I wanted to compliment the applicants

7

on a great packet presentation.

8

MR. KOBLISH:

Thank you.

9

COMMISSIONER LAMPERT:

You have been very thorough,

10

very proactive to engage with your neighbors, with your

11

fellow businesses around, and your neighbors, and

12

trying to accommodate every contingency that you can.

13

As my other commissioners have mentioned, you

14

addressed the main things that I had kind of had

15

questions about, being the parking, and noise, and

16

lighting.

17

Kind of just a random question was, do you

18

have any plans or foresee potentially entertaining,

19

live entertainment, bringing in live music at some

20

point, or are you just going to use the PA system and

21

the speaker system and just pipe in sort of background

22

music?
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1

MR. KOBLISH:

As of right now it's background

2

music.

3

done the right way and then we'll worry about anything

4

special later.

5

as of right now.

6

We've been focusing on let's get this thing

We don't have any specific plans for it

COMMISSIONER LAMPERT:

Okay.

Great.

Mr. Chairman, I will say thank you to my

7

8

fellow commissioners.

9

answered throughout this evening and I have nothing

10

further.

Thank you.

11

MS. JARR:

12

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

13
14

Any of my questions have been

Mr. Chairman.
Thank you to my fellow

commissioners.
MS. JARR:

Mr. Chairman, if I could just add,

15

because I thought that was a great point to bring up,

16

the potential for live entertainment or live music.

17

just wanted to note that if that sort of temporary use

18

was being proposed, that that would come before the

19

village board.

20

with outdoor dining.

21

we would look at.

22

I

So it's not something that's included

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

That would be a separate use that

You anticipated my question.
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I'd like you to explain to the board and the

1

2

audience, what's the next step here?

3

asked to approve the Special Use and that's it.

4

don't, like, add conditions to the approval or anything

5

like that.

6

There's going to be a beer license, something else.

7

Because we're

There's going to be a building permit.

What else is next that the village is going

8

to do for this business before it becomes up and

9

running?

10
11

We

MS. JARR:

Sure.

I can speak to what comes next

for this request for outdoor dining.

12

If the commission does issue a recommendation

13

this evening, a month from now we'll come back, the

14

Planning

15

the findings of fact, and once that is approved, it

16

will go to the village board where they will issue the

17

final decision on this.

18

&

Zoning Commission will reconvene to review

As far as other related -- it's kind of

19

projects to get the project going, I invite applicant

20

or staff to describe kind of where things stand now and

21

what the schedule looks like.

22

MR. KOBLISH:

I would be happy to talk about that.
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1

Where we are at just in general, in general terms

2

speaking more about, five to six months out to

3

anticipated open.

4

of time for proper installation of equipment,

5

construction, permitting, including Special Use

6

permitting.

7

can take longer than you anticipate.

8

anticipating those anticipations, we're hopefully

9

looking to September, October.

10

But we -- let's see.

And that is to give ourselves plenty

We all know that things come up, things
So that's

I believe it was about

11

a month and a half ago we did submit a demolition

12

permit.

13

partition walls within the business.

14

the neighbors saw the dumpster that was out there.

15

what's next for us is just generally cleaning.

16

And so we've essentially taken out some
I'm sure some of
And

If everyone remembers, it was the amusement

17

park and there is still a lot of doggy hair.

So we're

18

going to be deep, deep, deep cleaning the place,

19

pressure washing, repairing some of the brickwork on

20

the exterior.

21

and after that, I have been told by our architect that

22

his final plans will be ready within the next couple of

Just some general, just tuck pointing,
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1

days.

2

apply for building permits for us, separate from the

3

village.

4

And those will be ready to go out to bid and

I'll also be applying for a Class 1 Brewer's

5

permit for the State of Illinois and a Brewer's

6

manufacturing liquor license and also for the federal

7

TTB, which is the Tax and Trade Bureau, also a federal

8

Brewer's notice, which is essentially the federal

9

Brewer's permit.

10

So there's a lot to apply for, but that's if

11

you wanted to know what's next, that's what I see

12

coming.

13

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Well, I appreciate that.

My

14

question was really for staff with respect to this

15

application because on other applications, the village

16

board is listed as thought perhaps adding conditions to

17

approval or something.

18

not necessary here because the village will be doing

19

other approvals and things later on.

20
21
22

What I'm suggesting is that's

Our job today is just to approve the Special
Use, period; is that correct?
MS. JARR:

To issue a recommendation for approval
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1

or denial for the request, which would then go to the

2

village board ultimately.

3
4

Unless our attorney wants to add anything to
the response.
MS. KEATING:

5

Chairman Boyd, I agree with you.

6

There's no need to attach conditions.

7

parking compliance, construction compliance, potential

8

noise issues will be dealt with administratively in the

9

building department, and the police department,

10

The issues of

potentially.

11

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

12

now in the record.

13

court reporter that it's there.

14

have any questions once we close the public hearing

15

about that issue.

16

The reason I ask that question it's
We have a formal record with a
So I didn't want to

So that's really all I have.

Give one last round to see if anybody else

17

has any questions.

18

questions, if you do, raise your hand I will call on

19

you.

20

If any of the board members have

Maggie, before we close the public hearing,

21

I'm going to ask you to just sort of poll the room.

22

anybody else anything that they would like to put in
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1

the public record, do it now or hold your peace.

2

we're going to close the record, and then the board

3

would like to deliberate.

4

MS. JARR:

Then

Let me turn my camera around so you can

5

all see the room, and I'll ask:

6

add anything for the record before we close the public

7

hearing?
Looks like no takers.

8
9

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

10
11
12

Would anybody like to

So I appreciate that.

And with that I'll have -- entertain a
motion.
May I have one last question

MEMBER DOMAGALSKI:

13

before we close the public record.

14

confirm we didn't get any other letters or public

15

comments from the public, right?

16

MS. JARR:

17

MEMBER DOMAGALSKI:

18

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

19

MEMBER DOMAGALSKI:

20

I just want to

We did not.
Okay.

Great.
I will make a motion to close

the public hearing then.

21

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

22

MS. JARR:

Thank you.

Sorry.

Second?

Can we confirm who second was?
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1

MEMBER STUDWELL:

2

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

3

I second it.
Maggie, if you would do a roll

call.

4

MS. JARR:

Okay.

Mr. Lampert?

5

COMMISSIONER LAMPERT:

6

MS. JARR:

7

MEMBER STUDWELL:

8

MS. JARR:

9

MEMBER DOMAGALSKI:

Mr. Studwell?
Aye.

Ms. Domagalski?

10

MS. JARR:

11

MEMBER LEE:

12

MS. JARR:

13

MEMBER BARTHOLOMAI:

14

MS. JARR:

15

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

16

MS. JARR:

17

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

18
19
20

Aye.

Aye.

Mr. Lee?
Aye.
Mr. Bartholomai?
Aye.

Mr. Chairman Boyd?
Aye.

The motion passes unanimously.
Thank you, Madam Court Reporter.

We appreciate your time.
(Whereupon the meeting
concluded at 8:35 p.m.)

21
22
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1

STATE OF ILLINOIS
SS:

2

COUNTY OF COOK

3
4

I, PAMELA L. COSENTINO, being first duly

5

sworn on oath says that she is a court reporter doing

'6

business in the City of Chicago; that she reported in

7

shorthand the proceedings given at the taking of said

8

meeting and that the foregoing is a true and correct

9

transcript of her shorthand notes so taken as

10

aforesaid and contains all the proceedings given at

11

said meeting.

12
13

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF:

I have hereunto set my

verified digital signature this 14th day of May, 2021.

14
15
16
PAMELA L. COSENTINO, CSR
17
18

19

20
21
22
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P ublic Works Cotntnittee D ivider

Village Board Agenda Memo
Date:

May 25, 2021

To:

President & Board of Trustees

From:

Richard N. Radde, Director of Public Works@
Julia Cedillo, Village Manager~

RE:

2021 Sewer Repair Program - Additional Expense Authorization

PURPOSE: The purpose of this agenda item is to authorize payment for additional expenses for
sewer point repair work that was discovered in the course of making repairs during the 2021 Sewer
Repair program.
GENERAL BACKGROUND:

Hancock Engineering prepared bid specifications, and a contract was awarded to Suburban
General for $105,383.00 at the March 23, 2021 Board meeting. In doing the repairs, additional
repairs were required, bringing the total project cost to $109,670.10. These repairs were
deemed necessary, and notice to proceed was given. Approval of the additional expenses is
needed as the final expenses exceed the original award amount.
In fiscal year 20/21, the Village budgeted in the Sewer Fund - Capital Outlay {05-44-4-420)
$100,000 for point repairs and restoration. This line item will be over by approximately
$2,220.00. The entire Sewer O&M fund for the fiscal year will be under budget.
This work was completed before the end of last fiscal year.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is requesting that the Board authorize total payment to Suburban General in the amount of
$109,670.10 at the May 25, 2021, Village Board Meeting. This motion would supersede the previous
motion approved by the Village Board in March.
MOTION / ACTION REQUESTED:
Discussion and Action:
Motion: To Approve the Final Payment to Surburban General in the Amount of $109,670.10
for the 2021 Sewer Repair Program.
DOCUMENTATION

• Original Board Memo - Dated March 23, 2021
• Hancock Engineering Pay Estimate No.1 and Final Dated May 19, 2021.

Documentation:
Original Board Memo dated March 23, 2021

Village Board Agenda Memo
Date:

March 23, 2021

To:

President & Board of Trustees

From:

Rick Radde, Director of Public Works
Julia Cedillo, Village Manager

RE:

2021 Sewer Repair Program - Contract Award

PURPOSE: The purpose of this agenda item is to authorize sewer repair work necessary to improve
and rehabilitate sewer pipes throughout the Village.
GENERAL BACKGROUND:
Sewer inspections were conducted in 2020 during the Sewer Cleaning and Televising Program.
From these reports, a list of areas in need of sewer point repairs was compiled. There were
seventeen locations identified, nine of the locations are within the upcoming paving project in
the 1100 and 1200 blocks of Meadowcrest. Five locations are on Huntington Court and three
locations on 26 th Street between Robinhood Lane and Forest Road. Sewer point repairs consist
of replacing various depths of sewer main with and without service connections. The total
project cost includes funds for all necessary restoration work with temporary patches used in
areas slated for resurfacing. These point repairs will reduce the chances of total pipe failure and
reduce the likelihood of sewer backups in nearby homes. The contractor will complete these
repairs by the end of April of 2021.

Bid specifications were prepared by Hancock Engineering. The bid opening was held on March
11, 2021. The lowest responsible bidder is Suburban General Construction Company, Inc. in the
amount of $105,382.00, which is slightly higher than the Engineer Estimate of $97, 620.00. In
the Fiscal Year 2020/21 budget, $100,000 is allocated in the Sewer Fund - Capital Outlay (0544-4-420) for point repairs.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of a contract with Suburban General Construction, Inc at the March 23,
2021, Village Board Meeting.
MOTION / ACTION REQUESTED:
Discussion and Action:
Motion: (1) To Accept the Bid Proposal from Suburban General Construction, Inc., in the
Amount of $105,382.00 and (2) to Authorize the Village Manager to execute the contract
documents.
DOCUMENTATION
• Recommendation Letter and Bid Results from Hancock Engineering dated
March 15, 2021.
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Civil Engineers• Municipal Consultants,:, Established 1911

Honorable President and
Board of Trustees
Village of La Grange Park
447 North Catherine Avenue
La Grange Park, Illinois 60526
Re: 2021 Sewer Repair Program
EHE File No. 520-21-00210
Original Contract Amount: $105,382.00
Pay Estimate No. 1 and Final
Ladies and Gentlemen:
Suburban General Construction, Inc. has completed the work on their Contract with the Village for the 2021
Sewer Repair Program. They have furnished the necessary labor, material and equipment on their contract.
The following is a summation of the quantities:

No.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.

Item
8" Dia PVC Comb/San Sewer Pipe Replacement
10" Dia PVC Comb/San Sewer Pipe Replace men
12" Dia PVC Comb/San Sewer Pipe Replacemen
Additional 811 PVC Sewer Replacement
Additional 10" PVC Sewer Replacement
Additional 12" PVC Sewer Replacement
8"x6" PVC Sewer Service Connections
10"x6" PVC Sewer Service Connections
12"x6" PVC Sewer Service Connections
6" Dia PVC Sanitary Sewer Service Pipe
Trench Backfill
Televised Sewer Inspection
Traffic Control & Protection

Plan Completed
Unit
Quanti!}'.
Quanti!}'.
Price
52
52.0 $ 419.00
37
38.0
665.00
91
94.3
475.00
10
3.5
1.00
10
1.0
1.00
14
4.1
1.00
1
0.0
105.00
1
0.0
170.00
5
7.0
475.00
20
20.5
1.00
200
151.0
1.00
1,460
1,447.0
3.50
1
1.0
7,750.00

Sub-Total

Total
Amount
$21,788.00
25,270.00
44,792.50
3.50
1.00
4.10
0.00
0.00
3,325.00
20.50
151.00
5,064.50
7,750.00

$108,170.10

Authorized Additions

1A. 12"x8" PVC Sewer Service Connections

0

Total Amount Due, Pay Estimate No. 1 and Final

2.0

750.00

1,500.00
$109,670.10

Edwin Hancock Engineering Company
9933 Roosevelt Road• Westchester, IL 60154-2749 • Phone: 708-865-0300 • Fax: 708-865-1212 • www.ehancock.com

Page 2 of 2
May 19, 2021
It is our recommendation that this Pay Estimate No. 1 and Final, in the amount of $109,670.10 be approved for
payment to the Contractor. Payment is to be made upon receipt of the Contractor's invoice and necessary
Waiver of Lien/Contractors Affidavits, which will become part of this estimate.
Respectfully submitted,
EDWIN HANCOCK ENGINEERING CO.
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Mark W. Volk 1 P.E., Principal
cc:

Ms. Julia Cedillo, Village Manager
Mr. Rick Radde, Director of Public Works
Suburban General Construction. Inc., 1019 E. 31st Street, LaGrange Park, IL 60526

VILLAGE BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE:

May 25, 2021

TO:

Village President and Board of Trustees

FROM:

Richard Radde, Director of Public Works ~
Julia Cedillo, Village Manage~
~

RE:

2020/21 Salt Purchase Contract - Revise Open Purchase Order

PURPOSE:

The Public Works Department is seeking approval from the Board to revise the original open
Purchase Order with Cargill Incorporated Salt Division for the purchase of bulk road salt in an
amount "not to exceed" $38,000.00.
GENERAL BACKGROUND

In February of 2021, the Village Board approved an open purchase not to exceed $33,000. At
that time, staff outlined the options for purchasing salt at the contract price of $52.32 per ton.
In the original memo, the total cost to purchase a maximum of 720 tons was initially stated as
$32,670.00, which should have read $37,670.40. The number oversight requires the Board to
approve a new not to exceed amount of $38,000.00.
In fiscal year 20/21, the Village budgeted in the Motor Fuel Tax Fund -Services (04-40-5-532)
$75,000 for salt.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Board approve an Open Purchase Order, not to exceed $38,000.00 with
Cargill Incorporated Salt Division for the purchase of salt, at the May 25, 2021 Board Meeting.
This motion would supersede the previous motion approved by the Village Board in February.

MOTION / ACTION REQUESTED

This item is for discussion and action.
Motion: To Approve a Revision To The "Not To Exceed Amount" For The Existing Open
Purchase Order with Cargill Incorporated Salt Division, from $33,000.00 to $38,000.00.

DOCUMENTATION

•

Original Salt Purchase Memo Dated February 23, 2021

Documentation:

VILLAGE BOARD AGENDA MEMO

Original Board Memo dated February 23, 2021

DATE:

February 23, 2021

TO:

Village President and Board of Trustees

FROM:

Richard Radde, Director of Public Works
Julia Cedillo, Village Manager

RE:

2020/21 Salt Purchase Contract - Open Purchase Order

PURPOSE:
The Public Works Department is seeking approval from the Board to have an open Purchase
Order with Cargill Incorporated Salt Division for the purchase of bulk road salt in an amount
"not to exceed" $33,000.00.
GENERAL BACKGROUND
The State of Illinois Central Management Services (CMS) solicited bids for bulk rock salt back in
the fall of 2020. On November 17, 2020, the Village was informed that Cargill Incorporated Salt
Division was awarded the 2020/21 Bulk Rock Salt Contract at $52.32/per ton.
The Village is required to take a minimum purchase of 480 tons (80% of 600) of salt at the
contract price of $52.32/ton, which would be a total cost of $25,113.60. The Village can
purchase a maximum of 720 tons (120% of 600), a total cost of $32,670.40.
In this fiscal year, the Village has budgeted in the Motor Fuel Tax Fund -Services (04-40-5-532)
$75,000 for salt.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the Board approve an Open Purchase Order, not to exceed $33,000.00 with
Cargill Incorporated Salt Division for the purchase of salt, at the February 23th Board Meeting.

MOTION / ACTION REQUESTED
This item is for discussion and action.
Motion: Approve an Open Purchase Order with Cargill Incorporated Salt Division, not to
exceed a total amount of $33,000.00.
DOCUMENTATION
• 2021/2021 State of Illinois Contract - Bulk Road Salt Contract
• Pricing

Cotnmercial Revitalization Committee
D ivider

Village Board Agenda Memo
Date:

May25,2021

To:

Village President and Board of Trustees

From:

Maggie Jarr, Assistant Village Manager~
Rick Radde, Director of Public Works~
Julia Cedillo, Village Manager~ ~

RE:

2021 Pilot Baitner Program

GENERAL BACKGROUND
Staff is excited to propose the launch of a Pilot Banner Program, which will install new banners on the
light poles along portions of La Grange Road and 31st Street The program aims to increase the visibility
oflocal businesses, encourage investment in the community, and implement the Village's Commercial
Revitalization Plan.
Desiw and location. Staff began working with Bannerville last month to develop unique, Villagebranded banners with eye-catching colors and designs that highlight the La Grange Park logo. Double
banners were designed for segments of La Grange Road near the Village Market and 31st Street Single
banners were designed for the more decorative light poles along 31st Street between La Grange Road
and Kemman Avenue. The banners along 31st Street feature four alternating designs, including a
patriotic banner that displays the American flag.
Cost and benefits. The total cost for the pilot, which includes banners, hardware, and installation on

71 light poles, is approximately $16,070. The majority of banners are located within three Business
Districts and the cost would be covered using Business District funds (est $10,760). Some banners are
located along a residential stretch of 31st Street (between Business Districts) and the cost would be
applied to the General Fund (est $5,310).
The banners outside of the Business Districts, while not currently budgeted, would provide continuity
and consistent branding along 31st Street, connect the two business areas located near La Grange
Road and Kemman Avenue, and amplify the vibrancy of the corridor overall. They would also replace
the American flags that are typically purchased and installed by the Village. By initiating this pilot
program and utilizing the services of Bannerville, the Village would no longer need to purchase flags
and rent a bucket truck to put up and take down the flags along 31st Street, which costs approximately
$3,400 annually.
Ifthe Village does not pursue the installation of banners on light poles outside of the Business Districts,

the Village will still need to remove the existing banner arms from the decorative light poles. The
banner arms are in poor condition, many are missing, and therefore should be removed.

1

Bannerville assumes the risk in the event that any banner systems fail. The banners have a one-year
warranty and will be replaced free of charge if damaged under normal weather conditions. The
bracket hardware has a lifetime warranty.
Winter option. For now, staff envisions using a three-season approach, with the new banners

displayed during spring, summer, and fall. Winter-themed banners could be designed and installed in
the Business Districts only for an additional cost of approximately $5,860 to be covered by Business
District funds.
Evaluation. Staff intends for the Commercial Revitalization Committee (CRC) to evaluate the pilot
program and develop a recommendation for a permanent banner program moving foiward.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the motion.
MOTION/ACTION REQUESTED
This item is for discussion and action.
Motton to approve the 2021 Pilot Banner Program

DOCUMENTATION
• La Grange Park banner designs and proposed locations
• Bannerville company brochure
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Artwork for single banners along 31st Street
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Artwork for double banners along La Grange Road

*Color scheme has not been finalized yet
Choose color scheme
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Installation along 31st Street {Alternating Design)
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Double banners along La Grange Road
Installed on every other light pole, east side of street
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Double banner

~ Business Development District (BDD)

Double banners along La Grange Road and single banners along 31 st Street
La Grange Road - Installed on every other light pole, east side of street
31 st Street - Installed on every light pole, both sides of street
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Double banner

®Business Development District (BDD)
Single banner - Orange

e

Single banner - Blue
Single banner - Green
Single banner - American flag

banner ville
SIGNAOE DONE RIGHT

Bannerville USA, Inc. has been in business since 1973, and we are considered by many
to be the premier banner company in the Midwest. Our Chicago area clients include the
Art Institute of Chicago, The Field Museum, the Museum of Science and Industry, and
many other fine cultural institutions. We work extensively with neighborhood associations
like the Chicago Loop Alliance, the Lincoln Park Chamber of Commerce, the 95th St.
Business Association, and the Lakeview Chamber of Commerce - printing, installing, and
maintaining their street pole banner programs.

Our suburban clients include Downtown Oak Park, the Village of Bloomingdale, the
Winnetka Chamber of Commerce, and the Village of LaGrange to name just a few.
All of our light pole banners are printed at our Burr Ridge production facility, using our ten
digital printers. We use 18 oz. outdoor vinyl for the banners, and after printing, all banners
are sewn, grommeted, and wind vented per your specifications. Our banners are
guaranteed fully for 1 year. We also install all of our banners with our own crews and
trucks.
Why choose us?
• As your strategic partner, we help you plan your design and production needs in
advance, allowing you to focus on other high priority initiatives.
• Connect community and inspire local collaborations through differentiating brand
design, quality production, and experienced installation.
• Our brand designs reflect your unique culture, creating awareness, generating
excitement and making an impact.
• Leverage Bannerville's expertise to maintain design consistency, contain costs
and manage time constraints.
• Professional and experienced, we work as a valued extension of your team,
helping you communicate your brand vision effectively.

bannerville
8164 S. Madison St.
Burr Ridge, IL 60527
Direct: 630-320-5522
bannerville.com

Village P resident Divider

Pillars Community Health
Healing. Caring. Educating. 1921-2021

A PROCLAMATION CELEBRATING THE 100™ ANNIVERSARY OF
PILLARS COMMUNITY HEAL TH
WHEREAS, on January 24, 1921, Marion Jean MacLeod was hired as the first community nurse in La
Grange to conduct weekly well baby clinics with Dr. Gardiner, a volunteer physician; and whereas local
welfare associations joined forces on May 20, 1928, to begin providing social services to Berwyn families;
and
WHEREAS, Pillars Community Health has demonstrated a tireless commitment to meet the changing
needs of the most vulnerable residents of the western suburbs of Chicago, including piloting behavioral
health programs in the 1950s, launching dental services in the 1960s, opening a domestic violence shelter
in the 1970s and sexual violence services in the 1980s-all at a reduced cost (or no cost at all); and
WHEREAS, Pillars Community Health has long recognized the inseparability of health and the social
determinants of health and has helped lead the integration of physical, mental, and social services, as far
back as the Great Depression and most recently in 2018 when they became one of the first organizations
in Illinois to offer these integrated services under one banner; and
WHEREAS, Pillars Community Health believes collaboration and outreach are necessary to achieve social
and health equity and has a history of working in partnership with dozens of area schools, hospitals, faithbased organizations, police departments, and nonprofits; and
WHEREAS, Pillars Community Health relies on more than 200 volunteers to run their domestic and
sexual violence hotlines and childhood bereavement programs and employs more than 250 staff including
doctors, dentists, social workers, and mental health clinicians; and
WHEREAS, Pillars Community Health's mission is to improve the health of our communities and
empower individuals through compassionate, whole-person care; and their vision is one of communities
in which all people have access to the care they need, when they need it.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, that I, James L. Discipio, President of the Village of La Grange
Park do hereby commend Pillars Community Health on their 100th Anniversary and offer my gratitude
for the positive contributions they have made to the community.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Village of La Grange
Park to be affixed this 25th day of May, 2021.

Dr. James L. Discipio, Village President
ATTEST:
Meghan Kooi, Village Clerk

This Is EMS: Caring for Our Communities
PROCLAMATION
"NATIONAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES WEEK"
May 16-22, 2021
WHEREAS, Emergency Medical Services (EMS) is a vital public service; and
WHEREAS,

the members of emergency medical services teams are ready to provide lifesaving care to
those in need 24 hours a day, seven days a week; and

WHEREAS,

access to quality emergency care dramatically improves the survival and recovery rate of
those who experience sudden illness or injury; and

WHEREAS,

the Village of La Grange Park provides a community based EMS system comprised of
well equipped, well prepared and dedicated Paramedics, Emergency Medical Technicians,
Firefighters, and Police Officers; and

WHEREAS, those providing EMS within our Village over the past year faced the additional challenges
of providing care during the COVID-19 worldwide pandemic; and
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED THAT:
May 16-22, 2021 be recognized as "National EMS Week".
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT:
The La Grange Park Village Board honors our frontline heroes dedicated to providing
emergency medicine, and the 2021 EMS Week theme: "THIS IS EMS: Caring for Our
Communities," reminds all that every day our EMS personnel are still there to respond,
support, and care for the needs of our Village.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Village of
La Grange Park to be affixed this May 25, 2021.

Dr. James L. Discipio, Village President

ATTEST:
Meghan Kooi, Village Clerk
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National Public Works Week Proclamation

May 16-22, 2021
"Stronger Together''
WHEREAS, public works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities and services that are of vital

importance to sustainable and resilient communities and to the public health, high quality of life and wellbeing of the people of the Village of La Grange Park; and
WHEREAS, these infrastructure, facilities and services could not be provided without the dedicated efforts of

public works professionals, who are engineers, managers and employees at all levels of government and the
private sector, who are responsible for rebuilding, improving and protecting our nation's transportation, water
supply, water treatment and solid waste systems, public buildings, and other structures and facilities essential
for our citizens; and
WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders and children in the Village of La Grange Park

to gain knowledge of and to maintain an ongoing interest and understanding of the importance of public
works and public works programs in their respective communities; and
WHEREAS, the year 2021 marks the 61 st annual National Public Works Week sponsored by the American

Public Works Association/Canadian Public Works Association.
NOW, THERFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED, that I, James L. Discipio, President of the Village of La Grange Park do

hereby designate the week of May 16 - 23, 2021 as National Public Works Week; I encourage all citizens to
join in activities, events and ceremonies designed to pay tribute to our public works professionals and to
recognize the substantial contributions they make to protect our national health, safety, and quality of life.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Village of La Grange Park to

be affixed this May 25 th day of 2021.

Dr. James L. Discipio, Village President
ATTEST:

----------Meghan M. Kooi, Village Clerk
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Items of Interest Divider

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE PARI(
La Grange Park Village Hall, 447 N. Catherine Ave., La Grange Park, Illinois

Annual Schedule of Regular Meeting Dates for 2021
May 25, 2021

Village Board Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

June 8, 2021

Work Session Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

June 22, 2021

Village Board Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

July 13, 2021

Work Session Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

July 27, 2021

Village Board Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

August 10, 2021

Work Session Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

August 24, 2021

Village Board Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

September 14, 2021

Work Session Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

September 28, 2021

Village Board Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

October 12, 2021

Work Session Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

October 26, 2021

Village Board Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

November 9, 2021

Work Session Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

November 23, 2021

Village Board Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall

December 14, 2021

Village Board Meeting

7:30 p.m.

Village Hall
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P.UBLIC, NOTICE·
NO[ICE IQ BIDDERS

\t'IIJ.AGE OFlA G~Gf P~I(
NPffce: ls her$1)y given bV lhiliPresiderV an(.f Board~
Trustees ot lh• VII~ -Of La Grange Pork Hllnols ·fftaf bid
prq>osdls v.111 be_~a~:111e folfQW!tlg ~~ . ._.

,-_:.;·:,.,··.·..:

•
: . ~RAH'l3~ RQAD W.ATERMA!N' ;- ._- , · ·
. • .· RSP~ENI ~~OJECT-: P~-2 .
• . The SCQpe OMhe p,JOJGI# Includes lhe Work ntlQ8SSOIY to

lnsto1) a 118W T2" 'WQtllrlmln Wllhlo eQSeme0ts and
remove of!d replace curb ~ gutter, SldeWQlks,
and drlV8wO't'S: hot-mix QSphaH sul'faelJ removal• and
patehlog; ,astorufioJ'I of servlCeS; and oil other app1J1tenant
worl( the~.
. .
Tile controc;m sh(JJI be paid .ln cosh for the work to be
performed. OJI' thlS proJec:fi

RCiws;

.• ~(actronle ~les or ·ttie blddJgg docJB'l1801S qre
avalloble from the (J.fflce Qf 1he Murilclpal ~gglneet, _Edwtil
Ha~ Engt~lfng Co.,. vta emall req1Jesl to
lntp@ehag.com ·UPQI) payrne,,it _Qf, O ootHehJ~ije
·ctiarge of Thltly-FJve Dollars (S35iQO)' per ser tlf blddtng
doe:titnents. · No bid· documents · wlll .. be issued oner
4:00 PM on Friday, June 4, 2021. Bid proposals must
be .submitted on the forms provided.
Seated b.lCIS wllt be 18Ctlved up;to the hour of 10:00
A.M. on Tuesday,· the 8th day of June 2021, at the VIiiage
Clel'J('s Office at the Village Hal, 447 North Calhel1ne, La
Grange Park, Illinois and will be publicly opened and read

at that time. All_ sealed•. bids· received shall be clearly la-

beled U8RAN8E ROAD WATERMAIN REPLACEMENI'
PROJECT - PHASE 2".
.
.

All bk! proposols. offered must be accompanied by, a
bid boh<J: or'a cashier's check or cerlified checl(, made
payable to the Order of. the President and B.oard of
Trustees of the VIilage of LaGrange Park in an amount not
less_ than Ten:Peroent (l 0%) of the total Qmount of the
bid, as a guarantee that If the bid proposal Is accepted, a
contract will be entered into and the. perfonnance of the
contract properly se_cured. No bid proposal shall be
conSidered unless. accompanied by such ·-bid bond or
check. No bid shall be withdrawn offer the opening of the
Proposals wHhout the consent of the Ple$idenf and Board
of Trustees of Ille VIiiage ot La Grange Park for a period .of
forty-five (45) days after __ the scheduled Hrna of bid
opening. .
·.
. .
_. ·
The Contractor and SubconfrQCJor shall comply with all
'regulations issue~ pursuant to Prevailing Wage Act (820
ILOS 130), ond dher applicable Federal Lawsand regulations pertainilg to labor standards.
. The ·Village. of La· Grange. Pork reserv~ the right· to·
waive technlcal!fles and to reject any/QII bids.
.
Dated at La Grange Palk, ft!ls 20fh.day ot May, 2021 ·.
. President and Board of Trustees
Village ct La Grange Parl(, Illinois
By Meghan Kool
Village Clerk
(Publishet1 in the La Grange Suburban life Moy 20,
2021).1885800
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